












 

As part of this effort, an interactive online Eugene Counts Dashboard will be deployed in the fall of 2010 to easily 
and clearly share information about progress and performance. Performance data will be reported through an 
accessible and easy-to-use online dashboard that will allow community members and decision-makers alike to 
track the City’s performance, with relevant content to make the measures more meaningful and useful.   
 
DOWNTOWN SAFETY INITIATIVE 
 
Eugene’s downtown has been a high priority for the Mayor, City Council, the community and staff for several 
years. Creating a community where all people feel safe, valued and welcome, has been the cornerstone of the 
City Council’s Safe Community goal. Downtown safety has been a particular focus for the Council and the 
community. 
 
Community members have expressed a deep interest in seeing substantive change to downtown conditions. A 
stronger downtown emerged as a driving force behind achieving four out of the five council goals in the Eugene 
Counts process. Perceptions about downtown safety were closely intertwined with people’s desire for an 
economically and culturally thriving downtown district, with many participants seeing downtown safety and 
downtown revitalization as being profoundly interdependent. Downtown issues also were top of mind for 
respondents to the annual community survey, second only to unemployment on this year’s list of most important 
problems facing Eugene. Residents’ concern about downtown peaked this year, with seven out of ten 
respondents saying they were dissatisfied with downtown’s current state. 
 
In January of 2010, the City Council unanimously supported a 12 point Downtown Safety Initiative developed after 
considerable input by the Downtown Safety Task Team and City staff. Together, the short- and long-term actions 
will work to reduce crime in the downtown core, improve the feeling of safety, and make downtown a safe and 
welcome environment for everyone. The City Council directed the City Manager to implement the short-term 
actions and requested that funding recommendations for the longer term actions, with the exception of item 8 
below, be included in the FY11 Budget. The short-term actions include: 
 

1. Better coordination with Downtown Eugene Inc’s red-capped guides, private security firms and parole and 
probation officers; 

2. Development of an ordinance or mechanism to address sale and consumption of fortified wine and malt 
liquor; 

3. Expand use of video cameras to prevent vandalism and other crimes, along with automating behavior 
crime reporting; 

4. Proposed modification of business improvement district fees to include more property; and  
5. Review of the Downtown Public Safety Zone ordinance to assess effectiveness and consider 

amendments. 
 
The long-term strategies are essential components of any significant change to the downtown core issues and 
include: 
 

6. Creation of an “umbrella strategy” to develop and coordinate a clearing house for nonemergency 
downtown issues and centralize public safety personnel; 

7. The addition of jail beds; 
8. Develop an overnight facility for alcohol/drug abusers; 
9. The addition of 7 Police Officers, 1 Sergeant and 1 Community Service Officer to add to the existing two 

officers to provide a strengthened downtown police team; 
10. Downtown work crews to clean the downtown and provide employment opportunities, 
11. Seasonal and more consistent lighting; and 
12. Enhancement to the City’s CAHOOTS contract to provide additional services for people experiencing 

mental health issues. 
 

Other Information 
 
Awards 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Eugene for its Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.  This was the 34th consecutive year that the City has achieved 
this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily 
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City of Eugene Organizational Chart
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CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON 
Eugene City Hall 
777 Pearl Street 

Eugene, Oregon 97401 
 

 
Mayor and City Council as of June 30, 2010 

 
  

 Name Term Expires
  
  
Mayor: Kitty Piercy January 2013
  
Councilors: George Brown (Ward 1) January 2013
  
 Betty Taylor (Ward 2) January 2013
  
 Alan Zelenka (Ward 3) January 2011
  
 George Poling (Ward 4) January 2011
  
 Mike Clark (Ward 5) January 2011
  
 Jennifer Solomon (Ward 6) January 2011
  
 Andrea Ortiz (Ward 7) January 2013
  
 Chris Pryor (Ward 8) January 2013
  
 
 

Principal Officials 
 
 
 Jon R. Ruiz, City Manager  
 
 Sarah Medary, Assistant City Manager 
 
 Glenn Klein, City Attorney 
 
 Kristie Hammitt, Central Services Executive Director 
  
 Randall B. Groves, Fire and Emergency Medical Services Chief 
 
 Renee Grube, Acting Library, Recreation, and Cultural Services Executive Director 
 
 Scott Luell, Acting Planning and Development Executive Director 
 
 Pete Kerns, Chief of Police  
 
 Kurt Corey, Public Works Executive Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Eugene, Oregon 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Eugene, Oregon (“the City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express 
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes consideration of internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2010, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
 
As described in Note 1, during the year ended June 30, 2010, the City adopted the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions.  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 3, 2010, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
is important for assessing the results of our audit. 
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The management’s discussion and analysis (pages 13 through 22); budgetary comparison 
information (pages 75, 76, and 78) and, the schedule of pension funding progress and the 
schedule of OPEB funding progress (page 77), are not required parts of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
management’s discussion and analysis and the pension and OPEB funding progress which 
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it.  The budgetary comparison information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in 
our opinion, is fairly stated in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section (pages 1 
through 10), other supplementary information (pages 79 through 129), and statistical tables 
section (pages 131 through 151) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations (pages 166 through 168), and is also not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The other supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical tables have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
 
ISLER CPA 
 

 
 

 

By Gary Iskra, CPA, a member  
 
Eugene, Oregon 
December 3, 2010 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
The management of the City of Eugene, Oregon (City) presents this narrative overview and analysis to facilitate both a 
short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  This 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions that 
existed as of the date of the independent auditors’ report.  Additional information outside the scope of this analysis can 
be found in the Letter of Transmittal.    
 

Financial Highlights 
 
• The City’s total assets at June 30, 2010 increased $29.9 million from $909.4 million to $939.3 million, or 3.3% from 

the prior year.  The primary cause for the increase in total assets was the addition of $6.1 million in due from other 
governments and $20.3 million in capital assets. 

 
• The City’s total liabilities decreased $1.1 million from $161.7 million to $160.6 million.  The decrease was largely 

due to an $8.0 million decrease in bonded debt offset by increases of $4.6 million and $1.4 million in accounts 
payable and wages payable, respectively. 

 
• The net assets of the City (assets less liabilities) at June 30, 2010 increased $30.9 million from $747.7 million to 

$778.6 million from the prior year.  Total net assets of $105.7 million are unrestricted.   
 
• At June 30, 2010, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $96.0 million, an 

increase of $11.8 million in comparison to the prior year.  Approximately $92.1 million is available for spending at 
the government’s discretion, subject to reporting fund limitations.  

 
• The General Fund’s spendable fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was $39.2 million, or 36.1% of 

General Fund expenditures. 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements and 
other required supplementary information.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 
 

1. Government-wide financial statements 
2. Fund financial statements 
3. Notes to the basic financial statements 

 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between 
the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent 
fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some 
items that will result in cash flows in a future fiscal period.  Examples of such items include earned, but uncollected 
property taxes, and earned, but unused compensated absences. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all, or 
a significant portion of, their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).   
 
The governmental activities of the City include the following: 
 

• Central services   
• Fire and emergency medical services 
• Library, recreation, and cultural services 
• Planning and development 
• Police 
• Public works   
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The business-type activities of the City include the following: 
 

• Ambulance transport 
• Municipal airport 
• Parking services 
• Stormwater utility 
• Wastewater utility 

 
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also a 
legally separate Urban Renewal Agency (URA) for which the City is financially accountable.  Although legally separate, 
the URA’s governing body is identical to the City’s, and because the services of the URA are exclusively for the benefit 
of the City, it is included as an integral part of the primary government. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found at Exhibits 1 and 2 in the basic financial statements. 
  
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into two 
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on 
available financial resources, rather than upon net income determination.  Therefore, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition and use of current spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may 
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful 
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financial decisions.  Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the 
governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.  These reconciliations can be found 
at Exhibits 3 and 5 in the basic financial statements. 
 
The City maintains 22 individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the governmental fund 
Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for 
those funds that are considered significant (major) to the City taken as a whole.  These financial statements report four 
major funds: General Fund, Community Development Special Revenue Fund, General Capital Projects Fund, and the 
Systems Development Capital Projects Fund.  Data from the other 18 governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Summary fund data by fund-type for these nonmajor governmental funds is provided as other 
supplementary information in the form of combining statements at B-1 and B-2 of this report.  Individual fund data for 
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements at C-1, C-2, D-1, D-2, E-1, 
and E-2. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds.  To demonstrate compliance with the 
budget, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund and the Community Development 
Fund as required supplementary information at A-1 and A-2.  Budgetary comparisons for all other governmental funds 
have been provided as other supplementary information at C-3 through C-13, D-3 through D-6, and E-3 through E-9. 
 
The governmental fund financial statements can be found at Exhibits 3 and 4 in the basic financial statements. 
 
Proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on net income 
determination.  The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds – enterprise funds and internal service funds.  
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the governmental-wide 
financial statements.  The City uses enterprise funds to account for its ambulance transport, municipal airport, parking 
services, stormwater utility, and wastewater utility operations.  Internal service funds are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions.  The City uses internal service funds to 
account for engineering services, facilities services, fleet services, information systems and services, and risk and 
benefits management activities.  Because internal service funds predominantly benefit governmental rather than 
business-type functions, their assets and liabilities have been included with the governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 
 

14



 

The enterprise funds, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City, are reported separately as proprietary 
fund financial statements in the basic financial statements.  Conversely, all internal service funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for the internal service 
funds is provided as other supplementary information in the form of combining statements at G-1, G-2, and G-3. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all proprietary funds.  To demonstrate compliance with the budget, 
budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the enterprise funds as other supplementary information at  
F-1 though F-5.  Budgetary comparisons for the internal service funds are provided as other supplementary information 
at G-4 through G-8.  The proprietary fund financial statements can be found at Exhibits 6, 7, and 8 in the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  They are an integral part of 
the financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them.   
 
Required supplementary information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary comparisons for the General 
Fund and Community Development Fund, information about the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide 
pension and other post employment benefits to its employees, and the budget to GAAP reconciliation schedule.   
 
Other supplementary information.  The combining statements and schedules referred to earlier and the schedules of 
property tax and bonded debt transactions follow the required supplementary information in this report. 
 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In the case 
of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $778.6 million at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. 

 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Capital assets $ 408,038,730 394,128,747 243,845,409 237,502,482 651,884,139 631,631,229
Other assets 244,339,386 241,896,507 43,046,596 35,855,233 287,385,982 277,751,740
   Total assets  652,378,116 636,025,254 286,892,005 273,357,715 939,270,121 909,382,969

Noncurrent liabilities 104,767,637 110,062,606 4,507,516 4,991,191 109,275,153 115,053,797
Other liabilities 41,121,205 40,035,534 10,235,927 6,580,305 51,357,132 46,615,839
   Total liabilities 145,888,842 150,098,140 14,743,443 11,571,496 160,632,285 161,669,636

Net assets:
   Invested in capital assets,
      net of related debt 368,493,364 345,073,199 239,045,916 232,335,631 607,539,280 577,408,830
   Restricted 56,191,505 53,962,044 9,160,566 9,373,596 65,352,071 63,335,640
   Unrestricted 81,804,405 86,891,871 23,942,080 20,076,992 105,746,485 106,968,863
      Total net assets $ 506,489,274 485,927,114 272,148,562 261,786,219 778,637,836 747,713,333

 

City of Eugene's Net Assets

TotalGovernmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net assets is its investment in capital assets, less any related debt used to acquire 
these assets that are still outstanding.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
 
An additional portion of the City’s net assets, $65.4 million (8.4%), represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of net assets $105.7 million (13.6%) are unrestricted and 
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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Revenues: 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
   Program revenues:
      Fees, fines, and charges for services $ 30,373,917 33,259,064 50,616,345 49,771,999 80,990,262 83,031,063
      Operating grants and contributions 13,996,242 12,404,857 147,102 0 14,143,344 12,404,857
      Capital grants and contributions 8,668,969 10,628,446 14,113,734 3,977,229 22,782,703 14,605,675
   General revenues:   
      Taxes 103,954,171 91,119,823 0 0 103,954,171 91,119,823
      Grants and contributions not restricted   
         to specific programs 3,230,928 752,602 0 0 3,230,928 752,602
      Contributions in lieu of taxes 12,342,958 13,263,982 0 0 12,342,958 13,263,982
      Franchise fees on telecom 
         providers revenues 8,653,036 9,029,349 0 0 8,653,036 9,029,349
      Unrestricted investment earnings 1,823,094 3,720,245 292,139 729,510 2,115,233 4,449,755
        Total revenues 183,043,315 174,178,368 65,169,320 54,478,738 248,212,635 228,657,106

Expenses:
   Central services 8,377,766 9,217,725 0 0 8,377,766 9,217,725
   Fire and emergency medical services 26,737,259 27,345,006 0 0 26,737,259 27,345,006
   Library, recreation, and cultural services 28,956,894 29,681,412 0 0 28,956,894 29,681,412
   Planning and development 19,833,161 20,978,977 0 0 19,833,161 20,978,977
   Police 44,801,367 48,533,017 0 0 44,801,367 48,533,017
   Public works 28,550,511 29,139,235 0 0 28,550,511 29,139,235
   Interest on long-term debt 6,415,984 6,654,887 0 0 6,415,984 6,654,887
   Ambulance transport 0 0 5,737,099 6,773,249 5,737,099 6,773,249
   Municipal airport 0 0 10,404,018 10,261,598 10,404,018 10,261,598
   Parking services 0 0 4,567,110 4,756,555 4,567,110 4,756,555
   Stormwater utility 0 0 12,318,848 11,578,529 12,318,848 11,578,529
   Wastewater utility 0 0 20,588,115 23,474,996 20,588,115 23,474,996
      Total expenses 163,672,942 171,550,259 53,615,190 56,844,927 217,288,132 228,395,186

Increase (decrease) in net assets before transfers 19,370,373 2,628,109 11,554,130 (2,366,189) 30,924,503 261,920
Transfers 1,191,787 20,346 (1,191,787) (20,346) 0 0
Increase (decrease) in net assets after transfers 20,562,160 2,648,455 10,362,343 (2,386,535) 30,924,503 261,920
Net assets, July 1 485,927,114 483,278,659 261,786,219 264,172,754 747,713,333 747,451,413
Net assets, June 30 $ 506,489,274 485,927,114 272,148,562 261,786,219 778,637,836 747,713,333

City of Eugene's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 
Expenses above include the indirect expenses as allocated in Exhibit 2 of the basic financial statements. 
 
Governmental activities.  The change in governmental activities before transfers increased from $2.6 million in the 
prior year to $19.4 million in the current year.  The increase of $16.8 million between the two years was driven by the 
following factors: 
 

• Property tax revenues increased $12.8 million during the year, primarily due to a tax rate increase for the G.O 
Street bonds, while departmental expenses across the organization were underspent. 

 
This next chart compares program revenues and expenses for the individual governmental activities for the current 
year.  As the chart reflects, most governmental activities relied on general revenues to support the function. 
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The next chart shows the percent of the total for each source of revenue supporting governmental activities. 

 
 

Governmental Activities
Revenues by Source
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Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $11.6 million before transfers.  
The increase was primarily driven by: 
 

• Capital grants and contributions increased $10.1 million during the year, primarily due to a $13.3 million 
increase in Federal Aviation Administration grants.   

 
The following chart compares program revenues to expenses by individual business-type activity for the current year.  
In comparison to governmental activities, business-type activities typically recover their costs through program 
revenues.  In the current year, several of the business-type activities experienced lower than anticipated program 
revenue. 
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The chart below shows that 77.7% of revenues for business-type activities are generated from fees, fines, and charges 
for services.  Capital grants and contributions were derived predominantly from grants from the Federal Aviation 
Administration and the donation of infrastructure stemming from the development of new residential areas 
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Capital assets.  The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 
2010 amounted to $651.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation).  The investment in capital assets includes land, 
right-of-ways, construction in progress, buildings and equipment, improvements other than buildings (such as parks and 
park improvements), storm sewers and trunk sewers (stormwater and wastewater systems), and infrastructure (such as 
roads and sidewalks).  The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 3.2%. 
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2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land $ 67,499,024 66,965,650 13,834,865 13,834,865 81,333,889 80,800,515
Construction in progress 23,684,573 15,230,293 14,144,108 7,250,797 37,828,681 22,481,090
Buildings and equipment 144,072,303 146,130,373 36,144,993 36,982,294 180,217,296 183,112,667
Improvements other
    than buildings 40,722,520 39,236,079 47,581,165 47,854,892 88,303,685 87,090,971
Storm sewers and
    trunk sewers 0 0 132,140,278 131,579,634 132,140,278 131,579,634
Infrastructure 132,060,310 126,566,352 0 0 132,060,310 126,566,352

$ 408,038,730 394,128,747 243,845,409 237,502,482 651,884,139 631,631,229

City of Eugene's Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Business-type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities Total

 
Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included infrastructure and construction in progress, including 
the purchase of a police facility building. 
 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Note 4E). 
 
Bonded Debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total liabilities of $160.6 million.  Of this amount, 
$107.2 million represented outstanding bonded indebtedness.  Outstanding bonded debt included $35.4 million in 
general obligation bonds to be serviced by general property taxes, $0.9 million in certificates of participation to be 
serviced by general property taxes, $0.5 million in limited tax improvement bonds to be serviced by property owners 
subject to the improvements, and $64.4 million in limited tax pension bonds to be repaid from existing revenue sources, 
all backed by the full faith and credit of the City.  The remainder of the City’s bonded debt includes $4.8 million in limited 
tax bonds and $1.3 million in certificates of participation, all serviced by specific fund revenues. 
 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

General obligation bonds $ 35,389,414 40,176,200 0 0 35,389,414 40,176,200
Certificates of participation 2,160,000 4,840,000 0 0 2,160,000 4,840,000
Limited tax bonds  64,862,223 65,031,643 4,810,000 5,180,000 69,672,223 70,211,643
Deferred amounts (17,799) 498 (10,507) (13,149) (28,306) (12,651)
 $ 102,393,838 110,048,341 4,799,493 5,166,851 107,193,331 115,215,192

City of Eugene's Bonded Debt

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 
The City’s total bonded debt decreased by $8.0 million (7.0%) during the current fiscal year, due to $15.7 million in 
scheduled debt payments, less $6.5 million in General Obligation Bond and Revolving Credit Facility draws, and $1.2 
million in accretion of deep discounts on limited tax pension bonds.   
 
Moody’s Investors Service rates the City’s public bond issues.  The City’s most recent ratings from Moody’s are as 
follows: 
 
• Aa1 for general obligation bonds (May 2010) with the following exceptions: 

 
• The General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 are insured by Ambac Assurance and were rated Aaa 

at issuance.  Subsequent to issuance, Ambac Assurance was downgraded by Moody’s Investors Service.  
Ambac Assurance is currently rated as Caa2. 
 

• The General Obligation Fire Projects Bonds, Series 2002 are insured by MBIA Insurance Corporation and were 
rated Aaa at issuance.  Subsequent to issuance, MBIA Insurance Corporation was downgraded by Moody’s 
Investors Service.  MBIA Insurance Corporation is currently rated as B3. 
 

• Aa2 for full faith and credit obligations, which includes the Atrium Obligations, the Santa Clara Fire Station 
Obligations, and the Broadway Garages Limited Tax Bonds (May 2010). 
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• A3 underlying and Caa2 insured for the pension obligations.  The pension obligations are insured by Ambac 
Assurance and were rated Aaa at issuance.  Subsequent to issuance, Ambac Assurance was downgraded by 
Moody’s Investors Service.  Ambac Assurance is currently rated as Caa2.  The pension obligations were issued as 
one offering for certain Oregon cities, counties, and special districts.  The City of Eugene’s share of the total 
pension obligations on which the rating was based is 29.7%. 

 
Under Oregon Revised Statutes, general obligation debt issues are limited to 3.0% of the real market value of all 
taxable property within the City’s boundaries.  The $35.4 million in general obligation debt applicable to this limit is well 
below the $676.8 million ceiling.  The City’s net direct general obligation bonded debt per capita is $221. 
 
Additional information on the City’s bonded debt can be found in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Note 4J). 
 

Fund-based Financial Analysis 

As previously discussed, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing 
requirements.   
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $96.0 
million, an increase of $11.8 million in comparison to the prior year.  Approximately 95.9% of this total amount ($92.1 
million) constitutes fund balance which is available for spending at the government’s discretion, subject to reporting fund 
limitations.  The remainder of fund balance ($3.9 million) is nonspendable because of the following: 1) prepaid 
expenditures, 2) debt service, 3) inventories, and 4) assets held for resale. 
 
The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased $7.4 million from $32.5 million to $39.9 million during the current 
fiscal year.  The increase was caused by a $1.8 million increase in revenues over the prior year, most notably a $4.2 
million increase in tax revenues that was offset by a $1.0 million decrease in charges for services, a $0.8 million 
decrease in intergovernmental revenues, and a $0.5 million decrease in miscellaneous revenues.  Expenditures were 
down $5.2 million compared to the prior year, mostly due to a $2.3 million decrease in central services expenditures, a 
$2.2 million decrease in police expenditures, and a $0.7 million decrease in planning and development expenditures. 
 
The fund balance in the Community Development Fund increased $0.3 million from $1.8 million to $2.1 million during 
the current fiscal year.  The increase was primarily due to a $0.5 million increase in other financing sources offset by a 
$0.2 million increase in departmental expenditures. 
 
The fund balance in the General Capital Projects Fund increased $6.5 million from $5.3 million to $11.8 million during 
the current fiscal year.  The increase in the fund balance was primarily caused by $19.3 million in transfers, offset by 
$13.5 million in capital outlay expenditures for the purchase of the new Police facility property. 
 
The fund balance in the Systems Development Capital Projects Fund decreased $0.3 million from $5.6 million to $5.3 
million during the current fiscal year.  The decrease was due to current year expenditures of $3.0 million, which were in 
excess of current year revenues requiring the utilization of $0.3 million in resources accumulated in prior years. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net assets and its percent to total net assets of each proprietary fund are as follows: 
 

• Ambulance Transport $  0.6  million (39.2%) 
• Municipal Airport  4.4  million (4.7%) 
• Parking Services 1.1  million (6.8%) 
• Stormwater Utility 8.3  million (15.1%) 
• Wastewater Utility 2.9  million (2.9%) 

 
Total business-type net assets increased $10.0 million in the current fiscal year.  Significant issues regarding proprietary 
funds are as follows: 
 
• The Ambulance Transport Fund reported a $0.7 million increase in net assets.  The increase was mainly due to 

$1.0 million in operating income that was offset by $0.3 million in transfers out. 

20



 

• The Municipal Airport Fund reported a $10.3 million increase in net assets.  The increase was due to a $10.5 million 
increase in contributions related to FAA grants. 

 
• The Parking Services Fund reported a $0.9 million decrease in net assets.  Although operating income was break 

even, the decrease was the result of $0.4 million in interest expenses and $0.6 million in transfers out. 
 
• The Stormwater Utility Fund reported a $1.0 million increase in net assets.  The increase was principally due to 

$0.8 million in operating income and $0.1 million in interest revenue.  
 
• The Wastewater Utility Fund reported a $1.0 million decrease in net assets.  The decrease was mainly due to $1.5 

million in operating losses that were offset by $0.5 million in capital contributions for wastewater improvements and 
infrastructure. 

 
Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds can be found in the previous discussion of the City’s 
business-type activities. 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City’s final budget differs from the original budget in that it contains carry-forward appropriations for various 
programs and projects, and supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year.  The final fiscal year 2010 
budget for the General Fund was increased by $5.9 million.  The primary reasons for this increase are as follows: 
 

• $2.7 million increase to police, including $1.4 million for grant-funded activities, $0.7 million in fire dispatch 
services, $0.2 million in regional radio user fees, and $0.1 million for equipment replacement. 
 

• $0.7 million increase to planning and development, including $0.4 million in carry-forward appropriations 
and $0.2 million for energy conservation and downtown safety. 

 
• $0.5 million increase to central services, including $0.3 million in carry-forward appropriations and $0.2 for 

equipment replacement. 
 
• $0.4 million increase to library, recreation, and cultural services, including $0.2 million for grant funded-

activities and $0.1 million in carry-forward appropriations. 
 
These changes were funded primarily by an increase of $1.9 million in intergovernmental revenues and $3.2 million in 
unspent resources from the prior year. 
 
The net increase of $7.1 million in budget-basis fund balance for the year ended June 30, 2010 was a significant 
improvement over the projected deficit of $4.8 million in the General Fund final amended budget.  Actual revenues were    
$2.5 million higher than budget, primarily due to tax revenues being $6.3 million higher than expected, and 
intergovernmental revenues and charges for services that were $2.1 million and $1.3 million, respectively below budget 
projections.  On the expenditure side, departments underspent their budgets by a total of $9.4 million.  The significant 
changes were in Police ($3.8 million), Central Services ($1.7 million), and Library, Recreation, and Cultural Services 
($1.5 million). 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the long-term impacts of the local economy were 
examined in conjunction with business decisions made by the City.  The following are the major assumptions used in 
developing the FY 2011 budget: 
 
• Interest rates on investments will be 0.75%. 
• Property tax revenue is expected to increase 5.8% in FY 2011. 
• Salaries for International Association of Fire Fighters union members will remain unchanged, while Non-

represented employees and the other collectively bargained agreements will increase between 2.0% - 3.0%. 
• Health benefit rates will increase by 2.5%. 
• PERS costs are expected to be 22% of payroll. 

 
During the current fiscal year, budget-basis fund balance in the General Fund increased to $39.1 million, an increase of 
$7.1 million over the prior year.  A portion of that increase was due to unanticipated revenues and underspending during 
the year.  City staff will be submitting a FY 2011 supplemental budget to the City Council in December to determine how 
to allocate the unanticipated ending fund balance. 
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Requests for Information  

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for those with an interest in the 
government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to: 
 
Fionan Cronin, CPA 
Assistant Finance Director 
City of Eugene 
100 West 10th Avenue, Suite 400 
Eugene, Oregon 97401  
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City of Eugene, Oregon Exhibit 1

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

(amounts in dollars)

 Governmental Business-type

Assets Activities Activities Total
Current assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments 149,318,356 24,158,060 173,476,416
Cash with fiscal agent 1,015,969 0 1,015,969
Receivables (net of allowance) 28,895,259 5,189,501 34,084,760
Internal balances (6,691,580) 6,691,580 0
Due from other governments 6,861,158 5,866,622 12,727,780
Inventories 934,753 828,302 1,763,055
Prepaids and deposits 855,753 9,426 865,179
Assets held for resale 2,407,967 0 2,407,967

Total current assets 183,597,635 42,743,491 226,341,126

Noncurrent assets
Loans and notes receivable 0 291,472 291,472
Deferred charges 998,490 11,633 1,010,123
Pension assets 59,743,261 0 59,743,261
Capital assets:
   Land and construction in progress 91,183,597 27,978,973 119,162,570
   Other capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 316,855,133 215,866,436 532,721,569

Total noncurrent assets 468,780,481 244,148,514 712,928,995

Total assets 652,378,116 286,892,005 939,270,121

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 4,109,352 4,686,130 8,795,482
Wages payable 7,554,643 1,571,440 9,126,083
Compensated absences payable 8,112,774 1,656,346 9,769,120
Due to other governments 1,441,931 260,733 1,702,664
Claims payable 10,332,251 0 10,332,251
Deposits 1,450,073 713,419 2,163,492
Notes and contracts payable 128,000 0 128,000
Interest payable 429,051 139,560 568,611
Unearned revenue 2,177,065 788,299 2,965,364
Certificates of participation payable 340,000 0 340,000
Bond anticipation notes payable 829,318 0 829,318
Bonds payable 4,216,747 420,000 4,636,747

Total current liabilities 41,121,205 10,235,927 51,357,132

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable 320,997 46,685 367,682
Notes and contracts payable 2,578,000 0 2,578,000
General obligation bond and revolving credit facility 684,414 0 684,414
Certificates of participation payable 1,820,000 0 1,820,000
Bonds payable (net of unamortized discount/premium) 95,332,677 4,379,493 99,712,170
Net OPEB obligation 4,031,549 81,338 4,112,887

Total noncurrent liabilities 104,767,637 4,507,516 109,275,153

Total liabilities 145,888,842 14,743,443 160,632,285

Net assets
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 368,493,364 239,045,916 607,539,280
Restricted for:
   Capital projects 16,733,124 8,435,242 25,168,366
   Debt service 2,128,503 725,324 2,853,827
   Community development 16,817,966 0 16,817,966
   Urban renewal 14,789,792 0 14,789,792
   Other purposes 5,722,120 0 5,722,120

Unrestricted 81,804,405 23,942,080 105,746,485

Total net assets 506,489,274 272,148,562 778,637,836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Eugene, Oregon Exhibit 2

Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

(amounts in dollars)    

 Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Fees,

Indirect Fines, and Operating Capital

Direct Expenses Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Functions/Programs

Governmental activities:

   Central services 26,202,469 (17,824,703) 6,611,740 19,102 50,702 (1,696,222) 0 (1,696,222)

   Fire and emergency medical services 23,565,330 3,171,929 2,195,110 190,553 0 (24,351,596) 0 (24,351,596)

   Library, recreation, and cultural services 26,476,496 2,480,398 5,522,563 1,725,372 438 (21,708,521) 0 (21,708,521)

   Planning and development 18,339,347 1,493,814 8,379,827 4,325,428 5,110 (7,122,796) 0 (7,122,796)

   Police 39,582,248 5,219,119 3,639,665 1,036,658 85,616 (40,039,428) 0 (40,039,428)

   Public works 26,984,068 1,566,443 4,025,012 6,699,129 8,527,103 (9,299,267) 0 (9,299,267)

   Interest on long term debt 6,415,984 0 0 0 0 (6,415,984) 0 (6,415,984)

Total governmental activities 167,565,942 (3,893,000) 30,373,917 13,996,242 8,668,969 (110,633,814) 0 (110,633,814)

Business-type activities:

   Ambulance transport 5,122,099 615,000 6,846,164 0 0 0 1,109,065 1,109,065

   Municipal airport 9,890,018 514,000 7,454,423 0 13,344,641 0 10,395,046 10,395,046

   Parking services 4,320,110 247,000 4,463,624 0 0 0 (103,486) (103,486)

   Stormwater utility 11,358,848 960,000 12,631,672 147,102 368,223 0 828,149 828,149

   Wastewater utility 19,031,115 1,557,000 19,220,462 0 400,870 0 (966,783) (966,783)

Total business-type activities 49,722,190 3,893,000 50,616,345 147,102 14,113,734 0 11,261,991 11,261,991

Total activities 217,288,132 0 80,990,262 14,143,344 22,782,703 (110,633,814) 11,261,991 (99,371,823)

General revenues:

   Property taxes 99,297,845 0 99,297,845

   Transient room tax 1,518,030 0 1,518,030

   Local motor vehicle fuel tax 3,138,296 0 3,138,296

   Contributions in lieu of taxes 12,342,958 0 12,342,958

   Franchise fees on telecom provider's revenues 8,653,036 0 8,653,036

   Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 3,230,928 0 3,230,928

   Unrestricted investment earnings 1,823,094 292,139 2,115,233

Transfers 1,191,787 (1,191,787) 0

        Total general revenues and transfers 131,195,974 (899,648) 130,296,326

                Change in net assets 20,562,160 10,362,343 30,924,503

Net assets, July 1, 2009 485,927,114 261,786,219 747,713,333

Net assets, June 30, 2010 506,489,274 272,148,562 778,637,836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

24



City of Eugene, Oregon Exhibit 3

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010 Systems
(amounts in dollars) General Development Other Total

Community Capital Capital Governmental Governmental
General Development Projects Projects Funds Funds

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments 43,935,286 1,554,285 11,407,064 5,410,030 34,120,854 96,427,519
Cash with fiscal agent 15,878 0 500,000 0 500,000 1,015,878
Receivables:
   Interest 917,441 46,092 0 0 158,158 1,121,691
   Taxes 5,185,866 0 0 0 1,000,622 6,186,488
   Accounts 2,449,495 17,243 0 541,919 931,270 3,939,927
   Assessments 0 0 0 0 1,235,591 1,235,591
   Loans and notes 0 15,281,485 0 5,124 2,016,239 17,302,848
      Allowance for uncollectibles (3,644) 0 0 0 (1,858) (5,502)
Due from other governments 2,290,347 1,000,501 53,651 0 3,350,815 6,695,314
Inventories 0 0 0 0 615,555 615,555
Prepaids and deposits 736,386 0 0 0 94,167 830,553
Assets held for resale 0 0 0 0 2,407,967 2,407,967

Total assets 55,527,055 17,899,606 11,960,715 5,957,073 46,429,380 137,773,829

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable 519,397 61,609 120,081 100,280 2,179,065 2,980,432
Wages payable 5,764,249 41,752 0 7,758 755,191 6,568,950
Due to other governments 571,466 412,697 0 9 312,352 1,296,524
Deposits 506,238 0 0 0 902,201 1,408,439
Deferred revenue 8,261,000 15,242,951 0 513,805 4,654,546 28,672,302
Bond anticipation notes payable 0 0 0 0 829,318 829,318

Total liabilities 15,622,350 15,759,009 120,081 621,852 9,632,673 41,755,965

Fund balances
Nonspendable 736,386 0 0 0 3,197,689 3,934,075
Restricted 20,987,111 2,140,597 1,074,547 5,335,221 25,913,911 55,451,387
Committed 0 0 0 0 7,793,449 7,793,449
Assigned 12,058,604 0 10,766,087 0 0 22,824,691
Unassigned 6,122,604 0 0 0 (108,342) 6,014,262

Total fund balances 39,904,705 2,140,597 11,840,634 5,335,221 36,796,707 96,017,864

Total liabilities and fund balances 55,527,055 17,899,606 11,960,715 5,957,073 46,429,380

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Assets:

The Statement of Net Assets reports receivables at their net realizable value.  However, receivables not available to pay for
  current-period expenditures are deferred in governmental funds. 25,743,164

Capital assets are not financial resources in governmental funds, but are reported in the Statement of Net Assets at their net
  depreciable value. 385,237,788

All liabilities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets.  However, if they are not due and payable in the current period, they
  are not recorded in governmental funds. (47,054,034)

Internal service funds are proprietary funds and not reported with governmental funds.  However, because internal service funds
  primarily benefit governmental activities, their assets, liabilities, and net assets are reported along with governmental activities
  in the Statement of Net Assets. 46,544,492

Net assets of governmental activities 506,489,274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Eugene, Oregon Exhibit 4

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Systems
 General Development Other Total

Community Capital Capital Governmental Governmental
General Development Projects Projects Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxes 93,555,106 0 0 0 21,808,636 115,363,742
Licenses and permits 5,820,404 0 0 0 6,196,547 12,016,951
Intergovernmental 4,083,049 3,748,844 83,532 42,187 13,288,965 21,246,577
Rental income 96,641 0 7,383 107,157 143,821 355,002
Charges for services 10,144,910 1,996 0 2,439,941 3,959,738 16,546,585
Fines and forfeits 2,950,245 0 0 0 36,341 2,986,586
Special assessments 0 0 0 0 498,370 498,370
Repayment of revolving loans 0 1,257,648 0 0 58,510 1,316,158
Miscellaneous 780,399 320,196 159,207 107,993 2,386,646 3,754,441

Total revenues 117,430,754 5,328,684 250,122 2,697,278 48,377,574 174,084,412

Expenditures
Current - departmental:
   Central services 12,907,876 111,000 10,761 27,000 4,102,989 17,159,626
   Fire and emergency medical services 22,739,300 0 0 0 238,655 22,977,955
   Library, recreation, and cultural services 21,878,244 0 0 0 3,810,511 25,688,755
   Planning and development 6,717,983 4,940,552 0 83,049 6,584,889 18,326,473
   Police 37,569,502 0 0 0 2,212,227 39,781,729
   Public works 6,301,043 0 0 104,878 9,451,286 15,857,207
Debt service:
   Principal 210,000 0 0 174,319 7,270,887 7,655,206
   Interest 38,370 16,971 0 3,111 1,721,616 1,780,068
   Arbitrage fee 0 0 0 0 15,070 15,070
   Issuance costs 0 0 0 0 18,975 18,975
Capital outlay 0 25,515 13,487,027 2,603,997 15,410,147 31,526,686
Total expenditures 108,362,318 5,094,038 13,497,788 2,996,354 50,837,252 180,787,750

Excess (deficiency) of
  revenues over expenditures 9,068,436 234,646 (13,247,666) (299,076) (2,459,678) (6,703,338)

Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds of debt issuance 0 0 500,000 0 0 500,000
Transfers in 2,268,615 65,000 19,269,300 0 18,613,298 40,216,213
Transfers out (3,947,933) 0 0 0 (18,277,864) (22,225,797)

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,679,318) 65,000 19,769,300 0 335,434 18,490,416

Net change in fund balances 7,389,118 299,646 6,521,634 (299,076) (2,124,244) 11,787,078

Fund balances, July 1, 2009 32,515,587 1,840,951 5,319,000 5,634,297 38,920,951 84,230,786

Fund balances, June 30, 2010 39,904,705 2,140,597 11,840,634 5,335,221 36,796,707 96,017,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Eugene, Oregon Exhibit 5

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
  in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 11,787,078

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
  different because:

Governmental funds defer revenues that do not provide current financial resources.
  However, the Statement of Activities recognizes such revenues at their net realizable value
  when earned, regardless of when received. 2,528,949

Donations of capital assets are reported as capital contributions in the Statement of 
  Activities, but do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not financial 
  resources.  In addition, the Statement of Activities reports gains and losses arising from
  the disposal of existing capital assets, while governmental funds do not. 1,639,248

Governmental funds do not report expenditures for unpaid compensated absences, interest
  expense, or arbitrage since they do not require the use of current financial resources.
  However, the Statement of Activities reports such expenses when incurred, regardless of
  when settlement ultimately occurs. (232,513)

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  However, the
  Statement of Activities allocates the cost of capital outlays over their estimated useful
  lives as depreciation expense. 14,992,629

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt provide current financial resources to governmental
  funds and are reported as revenues.  In the same way, repayments of long-term debt use
  current financial resources and are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  However, neither
  the receipt of debt proceeds nor the payment of debt principal affect the Statement of Activities,
  but are reported as increases and decreases in noncurrent liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 7,155,206

Transfers of capital assets are often made between proprietary funds and governmental funds when the use
  of an asset changes. Transfers of liabilities are sometimes made between proprietary funds and
  governmental funds when the fund responsible for repayment changes.  Such transfers will provide or use
  economic resources in proprietary funds, but may not necessarily provide or use spendable financial
  resources in governmental funds. (2,335,690)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
  such as insurance, facilities, and fleet services to individual funds.  The net revenue
  (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (14,972,747)

Change in net assets of governmental activities 20,562,160

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

27



C
ity

 o
f E

ug
en

e,
 O

re
go

n
Ex

hi
bi

t 6

St
at

em
en

t o
f F

un
d 

N
et

 A
ss

et
s

P
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 F
un

ds
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
0

(a
m

ou
nt

s 
in

 d
ol

la
rs

)
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

A
ct

iv
iti

es

 
To

ta
l

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

M
un

ic
ip

al
P

ar
ki

ng
S

to
rm

w
at

er
W

as
te

w
at

er
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
Tr

an
sp

or
t

A
irp

or
t

S
er

vi
ce

s
U

til
ity

U
til

ity
To

ta
ls

Fu
nd

s
A

ss
et

s
C

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
et

s
E

qu
ity

 in
 p

oo
le

d 
ca

sh
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
53

9,
56

7
12

,5
71

,6
56

1,
92

4,
90

6
7,

01
8,

84
0

2,
10

3,
09

1
24

,1
58

,0
60

52
,8

90
,8

36
C

as
h 

w
ith

 fi
sc

al
 a

ge
nt

0
0

0
0

0
0

92
R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
:

   
A

cc
ou

nt
s

1,
62

3,
56

3
76

8,
87

7
33

0,
26

4
1,

70
2,

42
6

1,
22

2,
96

0
5,

64
8,

09
0

23
,6

24
   

   
A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r u

nc
ol

le
ct

ib
le

s
(3

38
,1

35
)

(1
6,

03
6)

(9
3,

42
3)

(6
,3

12
)

(4
,6

83
)

(4
58

,5
89

)
(2

75
)

D
ue

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
7,

40
0

4,
19

2,
40

5
11

,6
42

23
3,

04
1

1,
42

2,
13

4
5,

86
6,

62
2

16
5,

84
4

In
ve

nt
or

ie
s

0
0

25
,6

48
24

6,
76

1
55

5,
89

3
82

8,
30

2
31

9,
19

8
P

re
pa

id
s 

an
d 

de
po

si
ts

0
0

0
4,

71
3

4,
71

3
9,

42
6

25
,2

00

To
ta

l c
ur

re
nt

 a
ss

et
s

1,
83

2,
39

5
17

,5
16

,9
02

2,
19

9,
03

7
9,

19
9,

46
9

5,
30

4,
10

8
36

,0
51

,9
11

53
,4

24
,5

19

N
on

cu
rr

en
t a

ss
et

s
Lo

an
s 

an
d 

no
te

s 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

0
28

0,
46

8
0

0
11

,0
04

29
1,

47
2

0
D

ef
er

re
d 

ch
ar

ge
s

0
0

11
,6

33
0

0
11

,6
33

51
6,

01
7

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Fu
nd

s
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 A
ct

iv
iti

es

P
en

si
on

 a
ss

et
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

59
,7

43
,2

61
C

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s:

   
La

nd
0

6,
50

2,
96

0
2,

13
0,

23
5

3,
85

9,
02

5
1,

34
2,

64
5

13
,8

34
,8

65
45

5,
83

4
   

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
th

er
 th

an
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

37
9,

10
7

84
,7

57
,6

80
62

3,
14

6
2,

08
3,

51
4

2,
36

5,
96

4
90

,2
09

,4
11

51
,9

13
   

Tr
un

k 
se

w
er

s
0

33
9,

32
0

0
21

3,
50

1
15

0,
54

9,
64

0
15

1,
10

2,
46

1
0

   
S

to
rm

 s
ew

er
s

0
23

2,
24

4
0

51
,0

22
,5

35
1,

86
0,

72
4

53
,1

15
,5

03
0

   
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t

1,
15

9,
20

0
29

,6
36

,6
84

28
,8

26
,5

33
1,

20
5,

64
7

97
9,

68
4

61
,8

07
,7

48
46

,0
14

,6
21

   
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

0
13

,0
45

,0
56

91
,5

47
73

4,
82

8
27

2,
67

7
14

,1
44

,1
08

9,
44

8
   

   
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

(6
28

,8
21

)
(5

3,
58

1,
71

5)
(1

2,
80

5,
63

9)
(1

2,
58

5,
14

4)
(6

0,
76

7,
36

8)
(1

40
,3

68
,6

87
)

(2
3,

73
0,

87
4)

To
ta

l n
on

cu
rr

en
t a

ss
et

s
90

9,
48

6
81

,2
12

,6
97

18
,8

77
,4

55
46

,5
33

,9
06

96
,6

14
,9

70
24

4,
14

8,
51

4
83

,0
60

,2
20

To
ta

l a
ss

et
s

2,
74

1,
88

1
98

,7
29

,5
99

21
,0

76
,4

92
55

,7
33

,3
75

10
1,

91
9,

07
8

28
0,

20
0,

42
5

13
6,

48
4,

73
9

co
nt

in
ue

d

28



Ex
hi

bi
t 6

, c
on

tin
ue

d

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
To

ta
l

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

M
un

ic
ip

al
P

ar
ki

ng
S

to
rm

w
at

er
W

as
te

w
at

er
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
Tr

an
sp

or
t

A
irp

or
t

S
er

vi
ce

s
U

til
ity

U
til

ity
To

ta
ls

Fu
nd

s
Li

ab
ili

tie
s

C
ur

re
nt

 li
ab

ili
tie

s
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e

8,
53

8
4,

32
9,

27
9

84
,8

39
85

,4
32

17
8,

04
2

4,
68

6,
13

0
1,

12
8,

92
0

W
ag

es
 p

ay
ab

le
28

9,
86

9
25

4,
36

2
67

,6
10

35
1,

46
6

60
8,

13
3

1,
57

1,
44

0
98

5,
69

3
C

om
pe

ns
at

ed
 a

bs
en

ce
s 

pa
ya

bl
e

25
7,

42
6

25
8,

46
5

63
,5

85
38

6,
83

7
69

0,
03

3
1,

65
6,

34
6

80
8,

15
8

D
ue

 to
 o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

0
26

,9
33

29
2

45
,2

39
18

8,
26

9
26

0,
73

3
14

5,
40

7
C

la
im

s 
pa

ya
bl

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

,3
32

,2
51

D
ep

os
its

0
5,

26
9

8,
15

0
0

70
0,

00
0

71
3,

41
9

41
,6

34
In

te
re

st
 p

ay
ab

le
0

0
13

9,
56

0
0

0
13

9,
56

0
28

2,
17

4
U

ne
ar

ne
d 

re
ve

nu
e

68
3,

75
9

49
,8

54
34

,7
99

19
,8

87
0

78
8,

29
9

15
7,

06
2

C
er

tif
ic

at
es

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

pa
ya

bl
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
0,

00
0

B
on

ds
 p

ay
ab

le
0

0
42

0,
00

0
0

0
42

0,
00

0
78

1,
74

7

To
ta

l c
ur

re
nt

 li
ab

ili
tie

s
1,

23
9,

59
2

4,
92

4,
16

2
81

8,
83

5
88

8,
86

1
2,

36
4,

47
7

10
,2

35
,9

27
14

,7
93

,0
46

N
on

cu
rr

en
t l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
C

om
pe

ns
at

ed
 a

bs
en

ce
s 

pa
ya

bl
e

0
23

,1
32

20
8

0
23

,3
45

46
,6

85
10

2,
03

1
C

er
tif

ic
at

es
 o

f p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
pa

ya
bl

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
1,

17
5,

00
0

B
on

ds
 p

ay
ab

le
 (n

et
 o

f u
na

m
or

tiz
ed

 d
is

co
un

t/p
re

m
iu

m
)

0
0

4,
37

9,
49

3
0

0
4,

37
9,

49
3

63
,4

83
,4

02
N

et
 O

P
E

B
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n
6,

66
8

8,
61

3
10

,0
64

18
,2

87
37

,7
06

81
,3

38
3,

69
5,

18
8

To
ta

l n
on

cu
rr

en
t l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
6,

66
8

31
,7

45
4,

38
9,

76
5

18
,2

87
61

,0
51

4,
50

7,
51

6
68

,4
55

,6
21

To
ta

l l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

1,
24

6,
26

0
4,

95
5,

90
7

5,
20

8,
60

0
90

7,
14

8
2,

42
5,

52
8

14
,7

43
,4

43
83

,2
48

,6
67

N
et

 a
ss

et
s

In
ve

st
ed

 in
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s 

(n
et

 o
f r

el
at

ed
 d

eb
t)

90
9,

48
6

80
,9

32
,2

29
14

,0
66

,3
29

46
,5

33
,9

06
96

,6
03

,9
66

23
9,

04
5,

91
6

21
,4

95
,9

42
R

es
tri

ct
ed

 fo
r c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s
0

8,
43

5,
24

2
0

0
0

8,
43

5,
24

2
0

R
es

tri
ct

ed
 fo

r d
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

0
0

72
5,

32
4

0
0

72
5,

32
4

0
U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
58

6,
13

5
4,

40
6,

22
1

1,
07

6,
23

9
8,

29
2,

32
1

2,
88

9,
58

4
17

,2
50

,5
00

31
,7

40
,1

30

To
ta

l n
et

 a
ss

et
s

1,
49

5,
62

1
93

,7
73

,6
92

15
,8

67
,8

92
54

,8
26

,2
27

99
,4

93
,5

50
26

5,
45

6,
98

2
53

,2
36

,0
72

A
dj

us
tm

en
t t

o 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

co
ns

ol
id

at
io

n 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 fu
nd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 re

la
te

d 
to

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

fu
nd

s.
6,

69
1,

58
0

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

of
 b

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
27

2,
14

8,
56

2

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Fu
nd

s
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 A
ct

iv
iti

es

29



(this page intentionally left blank) 

30



City of Eugene, Oregon Exhibit 7

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)   

Governmental
Activities

 Total
Ambulance Municipal Parking Stormwater Wastewater Internal Service

Transport Airport Services Utility Utility Totals Funds
Operating revenues
Licenses and permits 0 0 0 75,776 0 75,776 1,000
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 147,102 0 147,102 86,132
Rental income 0 3,082,384 503,362 12,838 10,282 3,608,866 810,164
Charges for services 6,768,236 4,356,103 3,111,208 12,535,758 19,188,575 45,959,880 59,229,278
Fines and forfeits 0 5,995 844,055 0 7,413 857,463 0
Miscellaneous 77,928 9,941 4,999 7,300 14,192 114,360 200,009
Total operating revenues 6,846,164 7,454,423 4,463,624 12,778,774 19,220,462 50,763,447 60,326,583

Operating expenses
Personnel services 4,020,646 3,755,898 1,100,948 6,179,777 9,823,152 24,880,421 15,868,314
Contractual services 319,577 722,619 923,423 1,438,888 1,139,066 4,543,573 3,707,334
Materials and supplies 213,065 657,021 85,593 501,953 1,781,700 3,239,332 3,751,246
Maintenance 545,005 389,658 1,119,081 1,429,164 1,717,129 5,200,037 1,634,977
Utilities 16,653 377,413 20,842 64,272 872,539 1,351,719 2,886,348
Rent 0 1,144 40,800 56,832 54,520 153,296 462,520
Taxes 0 0 36,572 0 0 36,572 12,232
Insurance 33,961 112,736 72,266 53,601 125,841 398,405 2,083,861
Claims 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,374,030
Central business functions 615,000 514,000 247,000 960,000 1,557,000 3,893,000 2,305,000
Depreciation 52,874 4,142,405 785,439 1,331,580 3,634,340 9,946,638 3,742,172
Total operating expenses 5,816,781 10,672,894 4,431,964 12,016,067 20,705,287 53,642,993 56,828,034

 
Operating income (loss) 1,029,383 (3,218,471) 31,660 762,707 (1,484,825) (2,879,546) 3,498,549

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest revenue 0 150,302 21,007 96,974 23,856 292,139 915,968
Interest expense 0 0 (339,705) 0 0 (339,705) (4,558,695)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital asset 0 0 0 10,210 0 10,210 29,417
Amortization of issuance costs 0 0 (2,925) 0 0 (2,925) (39,934)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 0 150,302 (321,623) 107,184 23,856 (40,281) (3,653,244)

Income (loss) before capital
   contributions and transfers 1,029,383 (3,068,169) (289,963) 869,891 (1,460,969) (2,919,827) (154,695)

Capital contributions 0 13,344,641 0 515,577 551,085 14,411,303 2,043,231
Transfers in 0 0 0 0 0 0 498,940
Transfers out (348,615) 0 (617,000) (423,741) (100,000) (1,489,356) (17,000,000)

Change in net assets 680,768 10,276,472 (906,963) 961,727 (1,009,884) 10,002,120 (14,612,524)

Total net assets, July 1, 2009 814,853 83,497,220 16,774,855 53,864,500 100,503,434 67,848,596
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 1,495,621 93,773,692 15,867,892 54,826,227 99,493,550 53,236,072

          Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. 360,223

          Change in net assets of business-type activities 10,362,343

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Enterprise Funds
Business-type Activities
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CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
 

June 30, 2010 
 
 

continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The financial statements of the City of Eugene, Oregon (City) have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting standards. 
 
The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets. 
 
The City has early implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions.  There was no change in fund classifications. 
 
The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below. 

 
(A) The Financial Reporting Entity 

 
As defined by GAAP, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component 
units, which are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are 
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the component 
unit's board, and either a) the ability to impose its will on the component unit, or b) the possibility that the 
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government. 

 
The accompanying financial statements present the City of Eugene, Oregon (the primary government) and its 
component unit.  The City of Eugene is a municipal corporation governed by a council comprised of eight 
members, each elected by and representing the citizens of a different ward of the City, and a Mayor, who is 
elected at large.  The component unit discussed in the next paragraph is included in the City's reporting entity 
because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the City. 

 
Blended Component Unit.  The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Eugene (Agency) is a legally separate 
public body, corporate and politic, created by ordinance of the City, and governed by the City Council, acting in 
its capacity as the Urban Renewal Agency Board.  Because the Agency's governing body is identical to the 
City's, and because the services of the Agency are exclusively for the benefit of the City, the funds of the 
Agency are blended with those of the City by including them in the appropriate statements and schedules of 
this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  Separate financial statements for the Agency can be obtained 
from the Finance Division of the City of Eugene. 
 

(B) Organization and Operation 
 

The City operates under the Eugene Charter of 1976, a general grant of powers charter.  The City Council, 
composed of the Mayor and eight council members, forms the legislative branch of the City government, while 
the City Manager acts as the administrative head. 

 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.  Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate 
legal compliance and aid financial management by segregating government functions and activities.  The 
operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balances (net assets), revenues, and expenditures (expenses). 
 

(C) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) report information on all activities of the primary 
government and its component unit.  As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from 
these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees, fines, 
and charges for services. 
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CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
 
 

continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 
(C) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements, continued 

 
The Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2) demonstrates the degree to which the direct and allocated indirect 
expenses of a given function or business-type activity are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are 
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program.  Indirect expenses are those costs, usually 
administrative in nature, that support all City functions and enable direct services to be provided.  Program 
revenues include 1) fees, fines, and charges to customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or program, and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or program.  Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Fund financial statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 
 

(D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured by a fund.  Basis of accounting refers to when revenues 
and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.   
 
Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for using an economic 
resources measurement focus, whereby all assets and liabilities are included in the Statement of Net Assets 
and the Statement of Fund Net Assets.  The increases and decreases in those net assets are presented in the 
government-wide Statement of Activities and in the proprietary fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Fund Net Assets.  These funds use the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. 
 
The City's government-wide and proprietary fund accounting and financial reporting practices are based on all 
applicable GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:  Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and 
Accounting Research Bulletins (ARBs) of the Committee on Accounting Procedures.  The City has elected not 
to apply FASB guidance issued subsequent to November 30, 1989 to business-type activities and to enterprise 
funds, unless specifically adopted by the GASB. 
 
Interfund activity consists of transfers, services provided and/or used, reimbursements, advances, and loans.  
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmental-wide financial 
statements.  Exceptions to this general rule include interfund services provided and/or used.  Interfund services 
provided and/or used are accounted for as revenues and expenses since the elimination of such revenues and 
expenses would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions.     
 
Amounts reported as program revenues in the Statement of Activities include 1) fees, fines, and charges for 
services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments.  Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs are reported as general revenues 
rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
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continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 

(D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued 
 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, continued 
 

Operating revenues and operating expenses are intermediate components within the proprietary fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and include only those transactions that 
constitute their principal, ongoing activities exclusive of investing or financing transactions. Significant operating 
revenues include charges for services, rental income, and intergovernmental revenue.  Significant operating 
expenses include personnel, materials and supplies, outside services, and depreciation.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements   
 
The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using a current financial resources 
measurement focus.  The balance sheet generally reports only current assets and current liabilities; and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases and decreases in 
net current assets.  These funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recorded 
only when susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available).  "Measurable" means that the amount of the 
transaction can be determined.  "Available" is defined as being collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter (60 days) to be used to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Expenditures, other than 
interest on noncurrent obligations, are recorded when the fund liability is incurred. 
 
Real and personal property taxes are levied as of July 1 for each fiscal year on values assessed as of January 
1.  Property taxes are an enforceable lien on both real and personal property as of July 1 and are due and 
payable in three installments on November 15, February 15, and May 15.  All property taxes are billed and 
collected by Lane County and remitted to the City.  In the governmental fund financial statements, property 
taxes are reflected as revenues in the fiscal period for which they were levied, provided they are due, or past 
due and receivable within the current period, and collected within the current period or expected to be collected 
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period (60 days).  Otherwise, they are 
reported as deferred revenues.  Property taxes which are held at year-end by the collecting agency, Lane 
County, and are remitted to the City within the 60-day period are reported as "Due from other governments." 
 
Intergovernmental revenues are recognized as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met. There are, 
however, essentially two types of intergovernmental revenues.  In one, monies must be expended on the 
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, all eligibility requirements are 
determined to be met when the underlying expenditures are recorded.  In the other, monies are virtually 
unrestricted as to the purpose of the expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with 
prescribed requirements; therefore, all eligibility requirements are determined to be met at the time of receipt or 
earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 
 
Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits, and miscellaneous revenues (except investment 
earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until 
actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. 
Rental income is typically received in advance and is deferred when appropriate. 
 
Special assessments receivable and repayment of revolving loans expected to be collected within 60 days after 
year-end are considered measurable and available and are recognized as revenue.  Assessment installments 
that are long-term are offset by deferred revenues. 
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continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 
(D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued 

 
Governmental Funds 

 
Governmental funds finance most governmental functions of the City.  The acquisition, use, and balances of 
the City's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities, excluding those accounted for in proprietary 
funds, are accounted for through governmental funds.  The measurement focus is upon determination of 
changes in current financial resources, rather than upon net income determination.  The following are the City's 
major governmental funds: 

 
General Fund 

 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  Principal sources of revenue are property 
taxes, charges for services, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues.  Primary expenditures 
of the General Fund are made for fire and emergency medical services, library, recreation, and cultural 
services, planning and development, police, public works, and general administration. 

 
Community Development Fund 
 
The Community Development Fund is used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expending including; grant revenues received from the federal 
government under provisions of Title I of the Community Development Act of 1974. Major expenditures 
include development loans to individuals and businesses, as well as capital improvements benefiting low-
income persons. 
 
General Capital Projects Fund 

 
The General Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expending for capital outlay including; construction of capital facilities not 
financed by proprietary or other capital projects funds. General Fund transfers, federal and state grants, 
and bond proceeds provide the financing for the expenditures of this fund. 
 
Systems Development Capital Projects Fund 
 
The Systems Development Capital Projects Fund is used to account for resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned for construction of the non-assessable portion of capacity-enhancing capital 
projects. Financing is provided by a systems development charge levied against developing properties. 
Expenditures are restricted by state law to capacity-enhancing projects for the following systems: 
transportation, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, and parks facilities. 
 

 Proprietary Funds 
 

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing operations and activities which are similar to those 
found in the private sector.  The measurement focus is upon the determination of net income. 
 
The following are the City's major proprietary funds: 

 
Ambulance Transport Fund 
 
The Ambulance Transport Fund accounts for the operation of emergency medical services provided to the 
public.  Revenues are provided by user charges. 
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continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 

(D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued 
 

 Proprietary Funds, continued 
 
Municipal Airport Fund 
 
The Municipal Airport Fund accounts for the operations of the municipal airport.  Principal sources of 
revenues are rental of terminal space to airlines and other service providers, landing fees, and parking 
fees.  The fund receives Airport Improvement Program monies from the Federal Aviation Administration for 
capital improvements.  The fund also imposes passenger facility charges on passengers utilizing the 
airport, the proceeds of which are restricted for use in financing eligible projects as determined by 
regulation. 
 
Parking Services Fund 
 
The Parking Services Fund accounts for the operations of City-owned parking facilities.  Revenue sources 
include parking fees and fines, meter receipts, and rentals.  The revenue is used to operate and maintain 
the parking facilities. 
 
Stormwater Utility Fund 
 
The Stormwater Utility Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the stormwater drainage 
system and the wetland resource protection and enhancement program.  Primary revenues are stormwater 
user fees and the sale of wetland mitigation credits. 
 
Wastewater Utility Fund 
 
The Wastewater Utility Fund accounts for the operation, construction, and maintenance of the wastewater 
collection and treatment system.  Primary revenues are wastewater user fees. 
 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 
 

Internal Service Funds 
 

Internal service funds account for those activities and services furnished internally to other organizational 
units within the City on a cost reimbursement basis.  Charges are made to the various departments to 
support these activities.  The City's internal service funds include facilities services, fleet services, 
information systems and services, professional services, and risk and benefits.  The aggregate of all 
internal service funds is reflected in the fund financial statements.  
 

 Other Governmental Funds 
 

Other governmental funds include all nonmajor special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds of the 
City.  The following lists all other governmental funds by governmental fund type: 

 
Special Revenue Funds: 
 
 Construction and Rental Housing 

 Library Local Option Levy 

 Library, Parks, and Recreation 

 Public Safety Answering Point 

 Road 
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continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 

(D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued 
 
Other Governmental Funds, continued 
 

Special Revenue Funds, continued: 
 
 Solid Waste and Recycling 

 Special Assessment Management 

 Telecom Registration and Licensing 

 Transportation Utility  

 Urban Renewal Agency General 

 Urban Agency Riverfront 
 
Debt Service Funds: 
 
 General Obligation 

 Library 

 Special Assessment Bond 

 Urban Agency Agency 
 
Capital Projects Funds: 
 
 Road 

 Special Assessment 

 Transportation 

 Urban Renewal Agency 

 Urban Renewal Agency Riverfront 
 

(E) Self-insurance 
 

The City retains a portion of the risk of loss for workers' compensation, general liability, and medical, dental, 
and vision employee benefits.  The amount estimated to be payable is based on an actuarial report of the 
estimated ultimate loss, including incurred but not reported claims as of the Statement of Fund Net Assets date. 
Claims payable include all incremental costs directly incurred as a result of a claim, and consider estimated 
recoveries on both settled and unsettled claims.  Claims expense is reduced by amounts recovered or 
expected to be recovered.  Claims liability/expense are accounted for in the City's basic financial statements in 
an internal service fund. 

 
(F) Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 

 
Policies adopted by the Investment Advisory Board and the Eugene City Council authorize the City to invest in 
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies, time certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, municipal 
bonds, corporate bonds, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, and the 
Oregon Local Government Investment Pool. 
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continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
  
(F) Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments, continued 

 
It is the City’s policy to report at amortized cost all short-term, highly-liquid money market investments 
(including corporate bonds, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, municipal bonds, and U.S. Treasury and 
agency obligations) and participating interest-earning investment contracts with a remaining maturity at time of 
purchase of one year or less.  Such investments are stated at cost, increased by accretion of discounts and 
reduced by amortization of premiums, both computed by the straight-line method.  Callable investments 
purchased at a discount are amortized to the maturity date, and callable investments purchased at a premium 
are amortized to the first call date.  Investments with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of more than one 
year are valued at fair value. 
 
The City maintains a common cash and investments pool for all City funds.  Interest earned on the pooled cash 
and investments is allocated quarterly based on each fund’s average cash and investments balance as a 
proportion of the City’s total pooled cash and investments.  For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the 
City considers “cash” to include the pooled cash and investments, since the pool has the general 
characteristics of a demand deposit account, in that any participating fund may deposit additional cash at any 
time and also may withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

 
 (G) Receivables 
 

Unbilled City services that are significant and meet the measurable and available criteria for revenue 
recognition are accrued as revenue in the governmental fund financial statements at year-end.  Significant 
unbilled service accounts receivable relating to the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements 
are accrued as revenue when earned. 

 
(H) Interfund Receivables and Payables 

 
In the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or 
services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified as "Due from other funds" or "Due to other 
funds" in the fund financial statements. 
 
During the year, borrowings that occur between funds are classified as interfund loans or advances. In the fund 
financial statements, the short-term portion of such borrowings are classified as “Interfund loans receivable” or 
“Interfund loans payable”. The noncurrent portion is classified as “Advances to other funds” or “Advances from 
other funds.” The governmental fund financial statements report this as Nonspendable fund balance to indicate 
funds are not available for appropriation and are not expendable financial resources. 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, all interfund receivables and payables are combined and any 
residual balances between the governmental and business-type activities are reported as “Internal balances.”   
   

(I) Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 

Inventories of materials and supplies are valued at cost or average cost using the first-in/first-out method.  
Inventories are capitalized and charged to operations as consumed in both the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 

(J) Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets are defined by the government as tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and 
that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period.  The City’s capitalization threshold for 
tangible assets is $5,000.  Tangible assets include land, right-of-way (included with land), buildings, 
improvements, equipment, and infrastructure.  The capitalization threshold for intangible assets is $50,000.  
Intangible assets include copyrights, trademarks, and computer software.  
 
Infrastructure capital assets are those that are stationary in nature and can be preserved for a significantly 
greater number of years than most other capital assets. The City has a transportation infrastructure system 
reported in governmental activities consisting of roads, bridges, sidewalks, and traffic and lighting systems.  
Infrastructure reported in business-type activities consists of a regional airfield, and stormwater and wastewater 
collection systems.  As permitted by GASB 34, the City has limited the retroactive capitalization of 
governmental fund infrastructure to fiscal years ending after June 30, 1980.  Although the majority of such 
infrastructure was placed in service before that date, it has not been included in these financial statements 
since it has been substantially depreciated.   
 
Except for governmental activities infrastructure placed in service prior to July 1, 1980, all capital assets have 
been capitalized in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  In accordance with the 
current financial resources measurement focus, capital assets are not capitalized in the governmental fund 
financial statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and 
at estimated historical cost where no historical records exist.  Historical cost is measured by the cash or cash 
equivalent price of obtaining an asset, including ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its intended 
location and condition for use. Donated capital assets are reported at their estimated fair value at the time of 
acquisition plus ancillary charges, if any.  Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly 
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.  Amounts expended for maintenance and repairs are charged 
to expenditures/expenses in the appropriate funds as incurred and are not capitalized.  Capital improvements 
financed by special assessments which provide assets to the City’s Stormwater Utility Fund and Wastewater 
Utility Fund are capitalized in the proprietary fund Statement of Fund Net Assets. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated unless they are inexhaustible in nature or have an indefinite useful life (e.g., 
land and right-of-ways).  Depreciation is an accounting process which allocates the cost of capital assets, in a 
systematic and rational manner, to those periods expected to benefit from the use of capital assets.  
Depreciation is not intended to represent an estimate in the decline of fair market value, nor are capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation, intended to represent an estimate of the current condition of the assets, or the 
maintenance requirements needed to maintain the assets at their current level of condition.  
 
Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets. All estimates of useful lives are 
based on actual experience by City departments with identical or similar capital assets.  Infrastructure assets 
are depreciated using a composite depreciation method.  All other categories of assets are depreciated on the 
straight-line basis of accounting.  The estimated useful lives of the various categories of assets are as follows: 
 
 

 Estimated 
Category useful life 
Buildings 40-50 years 
Improvements other than buildings 20 years 
Infrastructure  25-40 years 
Equipment 3-15 years 
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continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 
 
(J) Capital Assets, continued 

 
Upon disposal of capital assets, cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and, if 
appropriate, a gain or loss on the disposal is recognized.  In accordance with the composite depreciation 
method, no gain or loss is recorded upon disposal, but rather, cost is removed from the capital asset account 
and charged to the accumulated depreciation account.   
 
Capital assets of proprietary funds are reported net of accumulated depreciation in the government-wide 
Statement of Net Assets and the proprietary funds Statement of Fund Net Assets. Capital assets not 
specifically related to activities reported in proprietary funds are reported net of accumulated depreciation in the 
governmental activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.  Depreciation expense on 
proprietary fund capital assets is reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities and the proprietary 
fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets.  Depreciation expense on general 
capital assets is reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities as a direct expense. 
 

(K) Capitalized Interest 
 

Interest is capitalized on constructed assets in proprietary funds.  For the year ended June 30, 2010, no 
interest was capitalized on proprietary fund capital assets. 
 

 (L) Compensated Absences 
 

Liabilities for accumulated or vested vacation leave and compensation time benefits (compensated absences) 
are recorded in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements.  The 
governmental fund financial statements do not report liabilities for compensated absences unless they are due 
for payment.  Sick leave does not vest and is recorded in all funds as taken. 
 

(M) Noncurrent Obligations 
 

Noncurrent obligations are reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as 
liabilities.  The governmental fund financial statements do not report noncurrent obligations because they do 
not require the use of current financial resources.  Bond discounts, premiums, and issuance costs are deferred 
and amortized over the term of the bonds using the bonds-outstanding method in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements, but are recognized during the current period in the governmental fund 
financial statements.  The bonds-outstanding method does not differ significantly from the effective interest 
method. 
 
The limited tax pension obligations are deep discount bonds that increase in value based on the initial yield to 
maturity.  This increase in value is reflected as an increase in noncurrent liabilities on the Statement of Net 
Assets and as interest expense on the Statement of Activities.    
 

(N) Fund Balance 
 

In the fund financial statements, the fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on 
the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. 
 
Fund balance is reported as nonspendable when the resources cannot be spent because they are either in a 
nonspendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  Resources in nonspendable 
form include inventories, prepaids and deposits, and assets held for resale. 
 
Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

43



CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
 
 

 

(5) Other Information, continued 
 
(D) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB), continued 
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions, continued 
 

The June 30, 2009 actuarial valuations for the healthcare plan and the post-employment life insurance benefits 
for disabled employees were based on the entry age normal and the projected unit credit actuarial cost 
methods, respectively.  The actuarial assumptions for both valuations included an investment return of 5.18%. 
The healthcare plan actuarial valuation included a healthcare cost inflation trend rate of 9.0% in 2010 
decreasing to 6.0% in 2020.  The unfunded actuarially accrued liability and the gains and losses for both plans 
are amortized as a level dollar amount over an open period of 30 years. 

 
(E) Contingencies 
 

The City is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of its 
operations.  Claims covered by the City’s self-insurance internal service fund are reviewed and losses are 
accrued based upon the judgment of City management.  Based upon the advice of legal counsel with respect to 
such litigation and claims, City management cannot determine what effect the ultimate disposition of these 
matters will have on the financial position or results of operations of City funds. 

 
(F) Outstanding Encumbrances 

 
 At June 30, 2010, the City has encumbered the following significant commitments:  
 

 
Fund Amount

General $ 1,502,658
Community Development Special Revenue 1,345,426
General Capital Projects 689,359
Systems Development Capital Projects 747,543
Municipal Airport 3,700,146
Parking Services 140,037
Stormwater Utility 1,224,124
Wastewater Utility 727,397
Internal service funds 628,615
Other governmental funds 8,556,898

Total outstanding encumbrances $ 19,262,203
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City of Eugene, Oregon A-1
General Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)    

 
Budget GAAP

Original Final basis Adjustment basis
Revenues
Taxes 87,287,968 87,287,968 93,555,106 0 93,555,106
Licenses and permits 6,742,600 6,742,600 5,820,404 0 5,820,404
Intergovernmental 4,252,000 6,151,620 4,094,217 (11,168) 4,083,049
Rental income 89,585 89,585 96,641 0 96,641
Charges for services 11,426,160 12,276,178 10,962,825 (817,915) 10,144,910
Fines and forfeits 2,856,000 2,856,000 2,950,245 0 2,950,245
Miscellaneous 399,600 405,065 828,856 (48,457) 780,399
Total revenues 113,053,913 115,809,016 118,308,294 (877,540) 117,430,754

Expenditures
Current - departmental:

Central services 22,929,077 23,476,188 21,780,652 (8,872,776) 12,907,876
Fire and emergency medical services 23,116,585 23,445,269 22,739,300 0 22,739,300
Library, recreation, and cultural services 22,901,921 23,289,591 21,801,752 76,492 21,878,244
Planning and development 7,133,015 7,838,915 7,201,870 (483,887) 6,717,983
Police 38,678,424 41,360,808 37,552,121 17,381 37,569,502
Public works 7,096,852 7,137,411 6,301,043 0 6,301,043

Debt service 253,000 253,000 248,370 0 248,370
Intergovernmental 550,000 550,000 317,028 (317,028) 0
Total expenditures 122,658,874 127,351,182 117,942,136 (9,579,818) 108,362,318

Excess (deficiency) of
   revenues over expenditures (9,604,961) (11,542,166) 366,158 8,702,278 9,068,436

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 10,688,615 10,688,615 10,688,615 (8,420,000) 2,268,615
Transfers out (2,709,300) (3,947,933) (3,947,933) 0 (3,947,933)
Total other financing sources (uses) 7,979,315 6,740,682 6,740,682 (8,420,000) (1,679,318)

Net change in fund balance (1,625,646) (4,801,484) 7,106,840 282,278 7,389,118
Fund balance, July 1, 2009 24,998,202 31,959,457 31,959,457 556,130 32,515,587
Fund balance, June 30, 2010 23,372,556 27,157,973 39,066,297 838,408 39,904,705

ActualBudget

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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City of Eugene, Oregon A-2
Community Development Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)    

 
Budget GAAP

Original Final basis Adjustment basis
Revenues
Intergovernmental 5,738,519 7,425,705 3,813,844 (65,000) 3,748,844
Charges for services 5,000 5,000 1,996 0 1,996
Repayment of revolving loans 0 0 0 1,257,648 1,257,648
Miscellaneous 1,117,250 1,117,250 325,396 (5,200) 320,196
Total revenues 6,860,769 8,547,955 4,141,236 1,187,448 5,328,684

Expenditures
Current - departmental:

Central services 6,000 6,000 0 111,000 111,000
Planning and development 2,777,450 3,882,256 2,716,301 2,224,251 4,940,552

Loans granted 4,960,502 5,680,994 2,224,251 (2,224,251) 0
Debt service 250,000 250,000 16,971 0 16,971
Capital outlay 574,356 562,487 25,515 0 25,515
Intergovernmental 6,700,000 6,700,000 0 0 0
Total expenditures 15,268,308 17,081,737 4,983,038 111,000 5,094,038

Excess (deficiency) of
   revenues over expenditures (8,407,539) (8,533,782) (841,802) 1,076,448 234,646

Other financing sources (uses)
Principal payments received 2,093,000 2,093,000 1,257,648 (1,257,648) 0
Proceeds of note issuance 5,385,000 5,385,000 0 0 0
Transfers in 0 0 0 65,000 65,000
Transfers out (111,000) (111,000) (111,000) 111,000 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 7,367,000 7,367,000 1,146,648 (1,081,648) 65,000

Net change in fund balance (1,040,539) (1,166,782) 304,846 (5,200) 299,646
Fund balance, July 1, 2009 1,706,429 1,833,248 1,833,248 7,703 1,840,951
Fund balance, June 30, 2010 665,890 666,466 2,138,094 2,503 2,140,597

ActualBudget

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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June 30, 2010 
 

 
(1) Schedule of Funding Progress – Oregon PERS 

 
Oregon Public Employee Retirement System’s schedule of funding progress for the City of Eugene: 

 
       Unfunded 
      Unfunded   actuarial 

Actuarial   Actuarial   Actuarial  actuarial   accrued liability 
valuation   value of   accrued  accrued Funded  Covered  as a percentage 

date   assets  liability  liability ratio  payroll of covered payroll 
        

12/31/05 $ 579,816,082  571,031,263 (8,784,819) 102% 75,604,360  -12% 
12/31/07  680,846,717 612,554,606 (68,292,111) 111% 85,563,475 -80% 
12/31/09  572,595,446 664,728,789 92,133,343 86% 89,005,209 104% 

 
 
(2) Schedule of Funding Progress – OPEB 

 
Other Post Employment Benefits schedule of funding progress: 
 

       Unfunded 
      Unfunded   actuarial 

Actuarial   Actuarial   Actuarial  actuarial   accrued liability 
valuation   value of   accrued  accrued Funded  Covered  as a percentage 

date   assets  liability  liability ratio  payroll of covered payroll 
        

06/30/07  $    0 22,854,225 22,854,225 0% 75,075,500  30% 
06/30/09  0 13,418,783 13,418,783 0% 90,674,405  15% 

 
 
The City’s other post employment benefits include retiree healthcare and waiver of life insurance premiums for 
disabled employees.  The actuarial cost method for retiree healthcare benefits is entry age normal; the cost 
method for waiver of life insurance premiums for disabled employees is projected unit cost. 
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(3) Budget to GAAP Reconciliation 
 

Sections of Oregon Revised Statutes (Oregon Budget Law) require most transactions be budgeted on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  However, there are certain transactions where statutory budget 
requirements conflict with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The following discusses the 
differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis of accounting for the General Fund and the Community 
Development Fund. 
 

Community
General Development

Net change in fund balance - budget basis $ 7,106,840 304,846         

Budget resources not qualifying as revenues or other financing
sources under GAAP:

Indirect and other cost reimbursements received are reported as revenues
or other financing sources on a budget basis.  Such receipts are
reclassified as a reduction of expenditures on a GAAP basis. (9,249,083)    0

Revenues and other financing sources required by GAAP not
qualifying as budget resources:

Adjustment for fair value of investments at year end is reported as
miscellaneous revenue on a GAAP basis.  Such revenues are not
reflected on a Budget basis. (48,457) (5,200)

Budget expenditures not qualifying as expenditures or other
financing uses under GAAP:

Indirect and other costs reimbursed are reported as expenditures on a
budget basis.  Such disbursements are reclassified as a reduction of
revenues and other financing sources on a GAAP basis. 9,249,083 0

Prepaid expenses are recorded in the year paid on a budget basis. 
However, such expenses are matched to the accounting period benefited
under GAAP. 330,735 0

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis. $ 7,389,118      299,646         

 
Principal payments received of $1,257,648 and loans granted of $2,224,251 are reported in the Community 
Development Fund as other financing sources and non-departmental expenditures, respectively.  Such amounts 
have been reclassified as revenues and departmental expenditures on a GAAP basis.  In addition, indirect cost 
reimbursements are reclassified from transfers to departmental administrative expenditures on a GAAP basis.  
Such reclassifications are not included in the above schedule. 
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City of Eugene, Oregon B-1
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Total
Special Debt Capital Other

 Revenue Service Projects Governmental
 Funds Funds Funds Funds
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments 18,533,343 5,615,680 9,971,831 34,120,854
Cash with fiscal agent 500,000 0 0 500,000
Receivables:   
   Interest 52,330 105,828 0 158,158
   Taxes 223,109 777,513 0 1,000,622
   Accounts 931,270 0 0 931,270
   Assessments 152,514 486,521 596,556 1,235,591
   Loans and notes 1,984,502 0 31,737 2,016,239
      Allowance for uncollectibles (1,858) 0 0 (1,858)
Due from other governments 908,325 65,880 2,376,610 3,350,815
Inventories 615,555 0 0 615,555
Prepaids and deposits 94,167 0 0 94,167
Assets held for resale 538,929 1,541 1,867,497 2,407,967
Total assets 24,532,186 7,052,963 14,844,231 46,429,380

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable 130,669 0 2,048,396 2,179,065
Wages payable 755,191 0 0 755,191
Due to other governments 312,352 0 0 312,352
Deposits 1,324 0 900,877 902,201
Deferred revenue 2,670,365 1,355,622 628,559 4,654,546
Bond anticipation notes payable 0 0 829,318 829,318
Total liabilities 3,869,901 1,355,622 4,407,150 9,632,673

Fund balances
Nonspendable 1,328,651 1,541 1,867,497 3,197,689
Restricted 11,540,185 5,695,800 8,677,926 25,913,911
Committed 7,793,449 0 0 7,793,449
Unassigned 0 0 (108,342) (108,342)
Total fund balances 20,662,285 5,697,341 10,437,081 36,796,707

Total liabilities and fund balances 24,532,186 7,052,963 14,844,231 46,429,380
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City of Eugene, Oregon B-2
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Total
Special Debt Capital Other

 Revenue Service Projects Governmental
 Funds Funds Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes 4,837,892 15,232,448 1,738,296 21,808,636
Licenses and permits 6,196,547 0 0 6,196,547
Intergovernmental 7,557,405 0 5,731,560 13,288,965
Rental income 130,793 0 13,028 143,821
Charges for services 3,850,742 0 108,996 3,959,738
Fines and forfeits 36,341 0 0 36,341
Special assessments 4,563 128,700 365,107 498,370
Repayment of revolving loans 58,510 0 0 58,510
Miscellaneous 2,089,228 177,364 120,054 2,386,646
Total revenues 24,762,021 15,538,512 8,077,041 48,377,574

Expenditures
Current - departmental:
   Central services 4,102,989 0 0 4,102,989
   Fire and emergency medical services 238,655 0 0 238,655
   Library, recreation, and cultural services 3,810,511 0 0 3,810,511
   Planning and development 6,584,889 0 0 6,584,889
   Police 2,212,227 0 0 2,212,227
   Public works 9,451,286 0 0 9,451,286
Debt service:
   Principal 0 7,270,887 0 7,270,887
   Interest 0 1,720,214 1,402 1,721,616
   Arbitrage fee 0 15,070 0 15,070
   Issuance costs 0 0 18,975 18,975
Capital outlay 78,142 0 15,332,005 15,410,147
Total expenditures 26,478,699 9,006,171 15,352,382 50,837,252

Excess (deficiency) of
   revenues over expenditures (1,716,678) 6,532,341 (7,275,341) (2,459,678)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 2,155,753 2,408,749 14,048,796 18,613,298
Transfers out (7,357,348) (9,066,540) (1,853,976) (18,277,864)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,201,595) (6,657,791) 12,194,820 335,434

Net change in fund balances (6,918,273) (125,450) 4,919,479 (2,124,244)
Fund balances, July 1, 2009 27,580,558 5,822,791 5,517,602 38,920,951
Fund balances, June 30, 2010 20,662,285 5,697,341 10,437,081 36,796,707
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining statements for all individual nonmajor special revenue funds are reported here. The combined totals are 
reported in the combining nonmajor governmental fund statements at B-1 and B-2.  Fund statements for major special 
revenue funds are reported in Exhibits 3 and 4 of the basic fi nancial statements.

Schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance - budget and actual are also presented here for each 
individual nonmajor special revenue fund.  Budget and actual comparisons for major special revenue funds are reported 
as required supplementary information at A-2.

Major Special Revenue Fund:

Community Development Fund - To account for grant revenues received from the Federal government.  Major 
expenditures include capital improvements benefi ting low income persons and community development loans.

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:

Construction and Rental Housing Fund - To account for construction permit services and rental housing code 
fees related to all properties within the city limits and the urban growth boundary including compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations.

Library Local Option Levy Fund - To account for revenues received from a four-year library local option levy to 
enhance services at the main library, operate two branch libraries, and furnish the main library.

Library, Parks, and Recreation Fund - To account for contributions from private donors to support the public 
library and City-owned parks and recreation facilities.

Public Safety Answering Point Fund - To account for operations of the emergency dispatch center.  Resources 
are primarily from telephone excise taxes and intergovernmental revenue.

Road Fund - To account for the operation and maintenance of the City's street transportation system.  Resources 
are provided from the City's share of State Highway Trust Fund alloations, State OTIA III monies, fees and 
permits, and other miscellaneous grants.

Solid Waste and Recycling Fund - To account for business license revenues which are used to regulate solid 
waste and recycling haulers and provide community education.

Special Assessment Management Fund - To account for operations of the property management and                       
assessment hardship deferral programs.

Telecom Registration and Licensing Fund - To account for registration fees and business privilege taxes collected 
from providers of telecommunication services in Eugene.  Resources are used for program administration and 
telecom projects that benefi t the community.

Transportation Utility Fund - To account for dedicated revenues and related capital project expenditures incurred 
in the City's pavement preservation program.  Revenues are generated primarily from a fi ve-cent local motor 
vehicle fuel tax and Lane County OTIA III monies.  Transferred to the Transportation Capital Projects Fund.

Urban Renewal Agency General Fund - To account for administration of the Urban Renewal Agency.

Urban Renewal Agency Riverfront Fund  - To account for revenues received from an ad valorem tax on property 
located in the Riverfront Research Park.  Resources are used for improving the condition and appearance of 
the Riverfront Research Park.

Special Revenue Funds



City of Eugene, Oregon G-7
Professional Services Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)    

 
Budget GAAP

Budget basis Adjustment basis
Revenues
Licenses and permits 4,000 1,000 0 1,000
Intergovernmental 110,000 0 0 0
Charges for services 6,619,532 6,039,657 0 6,039,657
Miscellaneous 15,000 36,272 (1,641) 34,631
Total revenues 6,748,532 6,076,929 (1,641) 6,075,288

Expenses
Current - departmental:
   Central services 0 0 635,000 635,000
   Public works 6,066,716 4,635,926 12,942 4,648,868
Depreciation 0 0 12,061 12,061
Total expenses 6,066,716 4,635,926 660,003 5,295,929

Excess (deficiency) of
   revenues over expenses 681,816 1,441,003 (661,644) 779,359

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out (635,000) (635,000) 635,000 0
Total other financing sources (uses) (635,000) (635,000) 635,000 0

Change in net assets 46,816 806,003 (26,644) 779,359
Total net assets, July 1, 2009 1,602,570 1,602,570 (121,779) 1,480,791
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 1,649,386 2,408,573 (148,423) 2,260,150

Actual
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City of Eugene, Oregon G-8
Risk and Benefits Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)    

 
Budget GAAP

Budget basis Adjustment basis
Revenues
Intergovernmental 29,398 86,612 (480) 86,132
Charges for services 30,712,016 29,701,862 0 29,701,862
Miscellaneous 224,000 1,164,661 (780,665) 383,996
Total revenues 30,965,414 30,953,135 (781,145) 30,171,990

Expenses
Current - departmental:
   Central services 26,874,289 25,898,173 967,158 26,865,331
Debt service 4,519,400 4,519,373 (40,681) 4,478,692
Depreciation 0 0 533 533
Amortization 0 0 37,978 37,978
Total expenses 31,393,689 30,417,546 964,988 31,382,534

Excess (deficiency) of
   revenues over expenses (428,275) 535,589 (1,746,133) (1,210,544)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out (203,000) (203,000) 203,000 0
Total other financing sources (uses) (203,000) (203,000) 203,000 0

Change in net assets (631,275) 332,589 (1,543,133) (1,210,544)
Total net assets, July 1, 2009 7,742,847 7,742,847 (2,769,829) 4,973,018
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 7,111,572 8,075,436 (4,312,962) 3,762,474

Actual
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City of Eugene, Oregon H-1
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)    

 Uncollected  Adjustments,  Uncollected
 balances Current interest, and  balances
Fiscal year July 1, 2009 year's levy discounts Collections June 30, 2010

1965-03 646,601 0 (80,194) (14,867) 551,540
2004 68,421 0 (6,918) (2,219) 59,284
2005 87,257 0 (7,076) (11,550) 68,631
2006 141,021 0 15,888 (77,169) 79,740
2007 480,535 0 43,639 (376,523) 147,651
2008 1,064,190 0 34,670 (511,336) 587,524
2009 2,615,696 0 (21,847) (1,290,969) 1,302,880
2010 0 102,340,449 (3,052,244) (96,079,826) 3,208,379
Totals 5,103,721 102,340,449 (3,074,082) (98,364,459) 6,005,629

Summary by fund type
General Fund (79,656,784) 5,005,007
Special Revenue Funds (3,475,868) 223,109
Debt Service Funds (15,231,807) 777,513
Totals (98,364,459) 6,005,629
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Statistical Section

STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of the City of Eugene’s comprehensive annual fi nancial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the fi nancial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
says about the City’s overall fi nancial health.

Financial Trends (Schedules I-1 to I-4)
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's fi nancial performance 
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity (Schedules I-5 to 1-8)
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City's ability to generate 
its property taxes.

Debt Capacity (Schedules I-9 to I-13)
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current level of 
outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information (Schedules I-14 - I-15)
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the City's fi nancial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other 
governments.

Operating Information (Schedules I-16 to I-18)
These schedules contain information about the City's operation and resources to help the reader understand 
how the City's fi nancial information relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-8

Ten Principal Property Taxpayers
Current year and six years ago - unaudited
(amounts in dollars)

FY 2010 FY 2004
Percentage Percentage

of total of total
Taxable taxable Taxable taxable

assessed assessed assessed assessed
Taxpayer value value value value

Hynix Semiconductor 258,542,806 2.25% 456,687,935 5.21%

PeaceHealth 158,087,842 1.38% 26,828,190 0.31%

Valley River Center LLC 99,460,548 0.87% 77,129,592 0.88%

Comcast Corporation 98,140,500 0.86% -                   -               

QWEST Corporation 59,544,400 0.52% 102,625,360 1.17%

Northwest Natural Gas Company 51,793,900 0.45% 33,742,000 0.38%

McKay Investment Company 48,079,548 0.42% 18,781,690 0.21%

Verizon Communications 46,613,500 0.41% -                   -               

Life Technologies (formerly Molecular Probes, Inc.) 38,586,997 0.34% -                   -               

Chase Village LLC 32,421,941 0.28% -                   -               

Guard Publishing Company -                   -               28,550,287 0.33%

Trus Joist, Inc. -                   -               23,352,650 0.27%

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company 18 186 951 0 21%Metropolitan Life Insurance Company -                 -             18,186,951 0.21%

SHLP Financing LLC -                   -               28,476,456 0.32%

     Subtotal 891,271,982 7.78% 814,361,111 9.29%
     All other taxpayers 10,575,215,782 92.22% 7,958,736,604 90.71%

     Total taxpayers 11,466,487,764 100.00% 8,773,097,715 100.00%

Notes
a) Reliable top ten taxpayer information is not available prior to FY2004.  Therefore, the City will use FY2004 for
    comparative purposes until FY2014.
b) Comcast Corporation, Verizon Communications, Molecular Probes, Inc., and Chase Village LLC were not among
     the top ten taxpayers in FY2004.
c) Guard Publishing Company, Trus Joist, Inc., Metropolitan Life Insuance Company, and SHLP Financing LLC were
     not among the top ten taxpayers in FY2010.

Data source
Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
City of Eugene Finance Division
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-10

Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last ten fiscal years - unaudited
(amounts in dollars)

General bonded debt outstanding
General Percentage

 obligation Certificates of of real market Per
Fiscal year bonds participation Limited tax bonds Total value capita

2001 37,750,000 19,265,350 8,315,174 65,330,524 0.61% 471       
 

2002 35,865,000 17,665,000 75,491,461 129,021,461 1.21% 918       

2003 42,010,000 16,005,000 76,053,652 134,068,652 1.26% 942       

2004 45,955,000 16,310,000 76,560,046 138,825,046 1.24% 965       

2005 43,300,000 14,250,000 77,013,970 134,563,970 1.08% 930       

2006 41,195,000 12,075,000 78,291,989 131,561,989 0.93% 900       

2007 39,660,000 9,785,000 70,659,254 120,104,254 0.60% 808       

2008 40,130,000 7,365,000 70,504,879 117,999,879 0.52% 768       

2009 40,176,200 4,840,000 70,211,643 115,227,843 0.49% 745       

2010 35,389,414 2,160,000 69,672,223 107,221,637 0.48% 683       

Notes
a) Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
b) All debt is shown net of unamortized premiums and discounts.
c) Percentage of real market value was calculated using property value information from Schedule I-5.
d) Debt per capita was calculated using population data from Schedule I-14.

Data source
City of Eugene Finance Division
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-11

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2010 - unaudited
(amounts in dollars)

Percentage City's share 
Debt applicable of overlapping 

Governmental unit outstanding to the City debt

City of Eugene 95,370,990 100.0000% 95,370,990
Less: Funds available for principal payment (1,044,195)
City of Eugene net direct debt 94,326,795

Junction City Water Control District 263,221 1.1399% 3,000

Lane Community College 86,468,927 44.3376% 38,338,247

Lane County 109,652,219 44.9519% 49,290,756

Lane Education Service District 7,890,000 45.0301% 3,552,875

School District 4J 174,105,000 77.4532% 134,849,894

School District 19 116,275,218 0.0002% 233

School District 52 24,270,000 78.9774% 19,167,815

     Total overlapping debt 245,202,820

     Total direct and overlapping debt 339,529,615

Data source 
Oregon State Treasury Debt Management Information System
City of Eugene Finance Division
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-13

Pledged-Revenue Coverage - Special Assessment Bonds
Last ten fiscal years - unaudited
(amounts in dollars)  

 
 Special
 assessment
Fiscal year collections Principal Interest Debt service Coverage
   
2001 742,566 680,000 90,631 770,631 0.96
  
2002 662,621 535,000 64,149 599,149 1.11

 
2003 371,393 280,000 39,563 319,563 1.16

 
2004 327,059 225,000 28,650 253,650 1.29

 
2005 140,707 140,000 18,530 158,530 0.89

 
2006 102,930 190,000 10,540 200,540 0.51

 
2007 266,270 220,057 52,192 272,249 0.98

2008 255,922 207,946 43,556 251,502 1.02

2009 152,562 121,314 34,768 156,082 0.98

2010 163,606 119,101 28,745 147,846 1.11

  

Notes
a) These bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

Data source
City of Eugene Finance Division
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-14

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last ten fiscal years - unaudited

City of Eugene Lane County
Personal

 Unemployment income Per capita
Fiscal year Population rate Population (thousands) income

2001 138,615 6.40% 323,950 8,420,557 25,948

2002 140,550 6.70% 325,900 8,491,421 25,966

2003 142,380 7.50% 328,150 8,698,081 26,344

2004 143,910 6.80% 329,400 9,213,725 27,788

2005 144,640 5.50% 333,350 9,981,276 29,841

2006 146,160 4.80% 336,085 10,483,145 30,825

2007 148,595 4.60% 339,740 11,269,508 32,877

2008 153,690 5.70% 343,140 11,679,994 33,522

2009 154,620 10.10% 345,880 11,594,589 33,522

2010 157,100 10.80% 347,690 11,655,264 33,522

Notes
a) Personal income information is not available for the City.
b) The 2009 and 2010 personal income for Lane County was not available and has been estimated by multiplying
     population by per capital income.
c) The 2009 and 2010 per capita income was not available and has been estimated to be the same as 2008.
d) Population is reported as of July 1 of each fiscal year.
e) Unemployment rates presented are annualized for the calendar year through FY2008.  The FY2010 unemployment
     rate is as of July, 2010 (the most recent information available).

Data source
Portland State University’s Center for Population Research and Census
Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce  
Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor
Lane County Management Services
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-15

Ten Principal Employers
Current year and nine years ago - unaudited

2010 2000
Percentage Percentage

of total of total
Employer Employees employment Employees employment

PeaceHealth Medical Group 4,893 3.07% 3,500 2.21%

University of Oregon 4,038 2.54% 3,507 2.21%

Eugene School District 4J 2,794 1.76% 1,929 1.22%

State of Oregon 2,205 1.39% 1,301 0.82%

Lane County 2,000 1.26% 1,632 1.03%

US Government 1,777 1.12% 3,600 2.27%

Springfield School District 1,500 0.94% 1,500 0.95%

City of Eugene 1,404 0.88% 1,378 0.87%

Lane Community College 1,118 0.70% 2,000 1.26%

Walmart 1,100 0.69% -                      -               

Weyerhauser -                      -                1,670 1.05%

Total 22,829 14.34% 22,017 13.89%

Notes
a) Information provided for the Eugene/Springfield Metropolitan Service Area.
b) Employee count and percent of employment is as of January 1st of each year.
c) Walmart was not a top ten employer in FY2001.
d) Weyerhaeuser Company was not a top ten employer in FY2010.
e) Employment data for 2001 was not available, so the most current data in 2000 has been used.

Data source
Eugene Chamber of Commerce
Oregon Employment Department
Lane County Financial Services
City of Eugene
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-16

City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last ten fiscal years - unaudited

Function/Program
Library,

Fire and recreation,
emergency and Planning

Central medical cultural and Public
Fiscal year services services services development Police works Total

2002 225 187 151 101 295 407 1,366

2003 234 192 159 96 290 392 1,363

2004 236 195 168 94 293 385 1,371

2005 227 200 193 91 289 390 1,390

2006 230 206 190 100 293 389 1,408

2007 239 204 195 113 303 403 1,457

2008 238 201 190 112 303 407 1,451

2009 230 203 190 111 296 410 1,440

2010 217 204 181 98 306 398 1,404

Notes
a) This schedule was added with the implementation of GASB34, effective with FY2002.
b) Number of employees is provided per Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) for full-time and part-time regular employees

that are in an ACTIVE status as of the last day of the fiscal year.
c) FTE by function is not available prior to FY2002.

Data source
City of Eugene Finance Division
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City of Eugene, Oregon I-18

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last ten fiscal years - unaudited

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Function/Program

Fire and emergency medical services:

Ambulances 8 8 9 9 10 10 11 11 10 10

Fire stations 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11

Fire apparatus 25 25 26 24 23 24 23 29 29 25

Library, recreation, and cultural services:

Amphitheatre 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Performing arts center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Community centers 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

9-hole golf course 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Indoor/outdoor pool 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Police:

Patrol vehicles 55 57 60 51 51 63 63 65 42 42

Public works:

Jogging and hiking trails (miles) 15 16 23 27 27 29 29 29 28 28

On/off street biking trails (miles) 112 115 119 122 122 126 130 132 153 157

Park acreage 2,284 2,400 2,400 2,902 2,902 2,902 3,150 3,670 3,671 3,671

Streets maintained (miles) 498 501 503 510 511 516 526 538 533 533

Alleys (miles) 43 43 43 43 43 42 42 42 42 42

Sidewalks (miles) 601 606 616 621 622 633 654 673 700 738

Drainage Lines (miles) 508 529 506 525 518 527 567 567 567 601

Sanitary sewers (miles) 750 754 754 770 774 781 797 807 813 815

Data source

Individual City Departments

Fiscal Year
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AUDIT COMMENTS 
(Comments and Disclosures Required by State Regulators) 

_________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Oregon Administrative Rules 162-010-0000 through 162-010-0330, of the Minimum Standards for Audits of 
Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation with the Oregon State Board 
of Accountancy, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments and disclosures required in audit 
reports.  The required financial statements and schedules are set forth in preceding sections of this report.  
Required comments and disclosures related to the audit of such statements and schedules are set forth following.

153



(this page intentionally left blank)

154



   

 
 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH OREGON AUDITING 
STANDARDS 
 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the  
  City Council and the City Manager 
City of Eugene, Oregon 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Eugene, Oregon as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated December 3, 2010.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the provisions of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal 
Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. 
 
Compliance  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as 
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules OAR 162-010-0000 to 162-010-0330, as set forth 
below, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. 
 

• Accounting records and related internal control structure. 
• The use of various depositories to secure the deposit of public funds. 
• The requirements relating to debt. 
• The requirements relating to the preparation, adoption and execution of the annual 

budgets for fiscal years 2010 and 2011. 
• The requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bond coverage. 
• The appropriate laws, rules and regulations pertaining to programs funded wholly or 

partially by other governmental agencies. 
• The requirements pertaining to the use of revenue from taxes on motor vehicle use fuel 

funds. 
• The statutory requirements pertaining to the investment of public funds. 
• The requirements pertaining to the awarding of public contracts and the construction of 

public improvements. 
 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Except as discussed below, the 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported 
under Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the 
Secretary of State. 
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Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations and Deficit Fund Balance 
 
As described in Note 3 to the finanicial statements, Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability, 
the results of testing indicated one instances of non-compliance related to excess expenditures 
over appropriations and deficit fund balance. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information of the Honorable Mayor, members of the City 
Council, the City Manager, management for the City of Eugene, and federal and state awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than those specified parties. 
 
 
ISLER CPA 
 

 
 
By: Gary Iskra, CPA, a member of the firm 
 
Eugene, Oregon 
December 3, 2010 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Eugene, Oregon 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Eugene, 
Oregon (“the City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 3, 2010.   
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of City’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others 
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
Isler CPA 
 
 

 
 
By Gary Iskra, CPA, a member of the firm 
 
Eugene, Oregon 
December 3, 2010 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB 
CIRCULAR A-133 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Eugene, Oregon 
 
Compliance 
 
We have audited the City of Eugene’s (“the City”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.  The City’s major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.  Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City’s management.  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.  
 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s 
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.   
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
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compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses.  We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others 
within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
Isler CPA 
 

 
 
 
By Gary Iskra, CPA, a member of the firm 
 
Eugene. Oregon 
December 3, 2010 
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CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

June 30, 2010 
 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
Financial Statements:  
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified 
Internal control over financial reporting:  
• Material weakness(es) identified? No 
• Significant deficiencies(s) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

  
Federal Awards:  
Internal control over major programs:  
• Material weakness(es) identified? No 
• Significant deficiencies (s) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) 
of Circular A-133? 

 
No 

 
 
Identification of Major Programs: 
 
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
     14.239 Home Investment Partnerships Program 
     14.256 (ARRA) Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
     14.257 (ARRA) Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing 
     20.205 Highway Planning and Construction 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $655,210 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 
 
 
Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
None 
 
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None 
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City of Eugene, Oregon J-1

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Federal
CFDA

Federal Grantor Program Title number Grant number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Grants passed through State of Oregon:

(ARRA) Recovery Act of 2009: Wildland Fire Management 10.688 GRNT0323 68,624$             
(ARRA) Recovery Act of 2009: Wildland Fire Management 10.688 GRNT0387 31,326
(ARRA) Recovery Act of 2009: Wildland Fire Management 10.688 GRNT0388 29,063

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 129,013

U.S. Department of Commerce
Direct program:

(ARRA) Habitat Conservation 11.463 NA09NMF4630300 141,145
Grants passed through State of Oregon:

Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program 11.550 07-407 11,412

Total U.S. Department of Commerce 152,557

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct program:

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-08-MC-41-0001 1,188,422
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-08-DC-41-0200 2,015,140
(ARRA) Community Development Block Grant Recovery (CDBG-R) Funds 14.253 B-09-MY-41-0001 1,480
(ARRA) Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing 14.257 S-09-MY-41-0002 171,679

Grants passed through State of Oregon:
(ARRA) Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.256 1089 363,183

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 3,739,904

U.S. Department of the Interior
Direct program:

Bureau of Land Management Assistance Agreement 15.DAK L08AC13286-0005 3,205
Bureau of Land Management Assistance Agreement 15.DAK L08AC13286-0006 18,115
Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource Management 15.231 2008-0056-003 85,240

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 106,560

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct program:

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 n/a 5,454
Grants passed through Lane County Oregon:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-1076 29,801
(ARRA) Recovery Act - Eward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.803 2009-SB-B9-1402 85,615

Total U.S. Department of Justice 120,870

U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct program:   

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-41-0018-036 24,411
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-41-0018-037 21,128
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-41-0018-041 5,415
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-41-0018-042 401,695
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-41-0018-044 4,102,344
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-41-0018-045 7,378,153

continued
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City of Eugene, Oregon J-1, continued
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Federal
CFDA

Federal Grantor Program Title number Grant number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation, continued
Grants passed through State of Oregon:

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 23076 690,764
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 23359 181,682
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 23422 32,830
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 25302 2,468,338
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 25565 1,404,168
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 25566 21,892
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 25659 20,184
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 25723 6,000
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 26415 10,189

Grants passed through Lane Council of Governments:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 2010-00217 40,000
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 2010-00228 17,229

Grants passed through Alliance for Community Traffic Safety:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 2009-00238 6,180

Grants passed through Oregon Association Chiefs of Police:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 2009-03214 24,074
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 SC-08-35-12-002 3,695
Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated 20.608 2008-2009 15,110

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 16,875,481

National Endowment for the Arts
Direct program:

Promotion of the Arts Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 09-6200-7016 25,000

Total National Endowment for the Arts 25,000

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Direct program:

Climate Showcase Communities Grant Program 66.041 AF-83452601-0 2,222

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2,222

U.S. Department of Education
Direct program:

(ARRA) Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG) 81.128 DE-SC0001863 121,801
Grants passed through Eugene School District 4J:

Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.215 Q215F090921 149,000
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 6733 56,000
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 16923 81,374

Total U.S. Department of Education 408,175

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct program:

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083 EMW-2005-FF-00527 144,000
Grants passed through State of Oregon:

Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 n/a 79,446
Citizen Corps 97.053 08-104 2,426

continued
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City of Eugene, Oregon J-1, continued
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
(amounts in dollars)

Federal
CFDA

Federal Grantor Program Title number Grant number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Homeland Security, continued
Grants passed through State of Oregon, continued:

State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) 97.073 07-216 20,764
State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) 97.073 08-220 33,074
Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Program (LETPP) 97.074 07-158 850

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 280,560

Total Federal Financial Assistance 21,840,342$      
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CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON 
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 

June 30, 2010 
 
 

(1) Purpose of the Schedule 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) is a supplementary 
schedule to the City of Eugene’s basic financial statements and is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis.  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the activities of the City of Eugene, 
Oregon, it is not intended to and does not present either the financial position, changes in fund balances, 
or the operating funds’ revenues or expenditures of the City of Eugene, Oregon. 

 
(2) Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Basis of Presentation 
 
The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
 
Federal Financial Assistance 
 
Pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984 and OMB Circular A-133, federal financial assistance is defined 
as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of grants, contracts, 
cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance or direct 
appropriations.  Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance, including federal surplus property, is 
included in federal financial assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable.  Federal 
financial assistance does not include direct federal cash assistance to individuals.  Solicited contracts 
between the state and federal government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or 
services are not considered to be federal financial assistance. 
 
Major Programs 
 
The Single Audit Act of 1984 and OMB Circular A-133 establish criteria to be used in defining major 
federal financial assistance programs.  Major programs for the City of Eugene, Oregon are those 
programs selected for testing by the auditor using a risk-assessment model, as well as certain minimum 
expenditure requirements, as outlined in OMB Circular A-133.  Programs with similar requirements may 
be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The reporting entity is fully described in Note 1(A) to the City of Eugene, Oregon’s Basic Financial 
Statements.  Additionally, the Schedule includes all federal programs administered by the City of Eugene, 
Oregon for the year ended June 30, 2010. 

 
Revenue and Expenditure Recognition 
 
The receipt and expenditure of federal awards are accounted for under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recorded as received in cash or on the accrual basis where measurable and 
available.  Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred.  
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